Date: 1 May 2008

TO:  All Members of the Development
Control Committee
FOR ATTENDANCE
TO:  All Other Members of the Council
FOR INFORMATION
Dear Sir/Madam
Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE
to be held in the GUILDHALL, ABINGDON on MONDAY, 12TH MAY, 2008 at 6.30 PM.

Yours faithfully

Terry Stock
Chief Executive

Members are reminded of the provisions contained in the Code of Conduct adopted on 30
September 2007 and Standing Order 34 regarding the declaration of Personal and
Prejudicial Interests.

AGENDA

A large print version of this agenda is available. In addition any background
papers referred to may be inspected by prior arrangement. Contact Carole
Nicholl, Head of Democratic Services, on telephone number (01235) 540305 /
carole.nicholl@whitehorsedc.gov.uk.

Please note that this meeting will be held in a wheelchair accessible venue. If
you would like to attend and have any special access requirements, please let
the Democratic Officer know beforehand and she will do his very best to meet
your requirements.

Open to the Public including the Press




Development Control Committee Monday, 12th May, 2008

Map and Vision

(Page 6)

A map showing the location of the venue for this meeting and a copy of the Council’s Vision are
attached.

1.

Notification of Substitutes and Apologies for Absence

To record the attendance of Substitute Members, if any, who have been authorised to
attend in accordance with the provisions of Standing Order 17(1), with notification
having been given to the proper Officer before the start of the meeting and to receive
apologies for absence.

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of Personal or Personal and Prejudicial Interests in respect
of items on the agenda for this meeting.

Any Member with a personal interest or a personal and prejudicial interest in accordance
with the provisions of the Code of Conduct, in any matter to be considered at a meeting,
must declare the existence and nature of that interest as soon as the interest becomes
apparent in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

When a Member declares a personal and prejudicial interest he shall also state if he has a
dispensation from the Standards Committee entitling him/her to speak, or speak and vote
on the matter concerned.

Where any Member has declared a personal and prejudicial interest he shall withdraw
from the room while the matter is under consideration unless

(a) His/her disability to speak, or speak and vote on the matter has been removed by
a dispensation granted by the Standards Committee, or

(b) members of the public are allowed to make representations, give evidence or
answer questions about the matter by statutory right or otherwise. If that is the
case, the Member can also attend the meeting for that purpose. However, the
Member must immediately leave the room once he/she has finished; or when the
meeting decides he/she has finished whichever is the earlier and in any event the
Member must leave the room for the duration of the debate on the item in which
he/she has a personal and prejudicial interest.

Urgent Business and Chair's Annhouncements

To receive notification of any matters which the Chair determines should be considered
as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters
urgent, and to receive any announcements from the Chair.

Statements and Petitions from the Public Under Standing Order 32

Any statements and/or petitions from the public under Standing Order 32 will be made
or presented at the meeting.

Questions from the Public Under Standing Order 32

Any questions from members of the public under Standing Order 32 will be asked at the

Vale of White Horse District Council



Development Control Committee Monday, 12th May, 2008

meeting.

6. Statements and Petitions from the Public under Standing Order 33

Any statements and/or petitions from members of the public under Standing Order 33,
relating to planning applications, will be made or presented at the meeting.

7. Materials
To consider any materials submitted prior to the meeting of the Committee.

ANY MATERIALS SUBMITTED WILL BE ON DISPLAY PRIOR TO THE MEETING.

8. Forthcoming Public Inquiries and Hearings
(Pages 7 - 9)

A list of forthcoming public inquiries and hearings is presented.

Recommendation

that the report be received.

9. Local Development Framework: Open Space, Sport and Recreation
Supplementary Planning Document, Future Provision

(Wards Affected: All Wards)

(Pages 10 - 94)

To receive and consider report 195/07 of the Deputy Director (Planning and Community
Strategy).

Introduction and Report Summary

At the meeting of the Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group held on 22 October
2007 Members considered the Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) prior to its publication for consultation. At a
subsequent meeting of the Strategic & Local Planning Advisory Group Members
considered the comments submitted during the consultation process and agreed to
amend the SPD as recommended in this report.

This report summarises the comments received during the consultation period and
recommends changes to the Supplementary Planning Document prior to its adoption.
The contact officer for this report is Alison Blyth, Principle Planning Officer, telephone
(01235) 547633.Email address Alison.blyth@whitehorsedc.co.uk.

Recommendations

(a) Members recommend to the Executive and to the Council to adopt the Open
Space, Sport and Recreation, Future Provision Supplementary Planning
Document subject to the changes set out in the appendix to this report.

(b) the Council to implement the requirements of the Supplementary Planning

Vale of White Horse District Council



Development Control Committee Monday, 12th May, 2008

Document via the Development Control function on planning application for one or
more houses once a project officer is in place.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1995 - The background papers for the
applications on this agenda are available for inspection at the Council Offices at the Abbey
House in Abingdon during normal office hours. They include the Oxfordshire Structure Plan,
the Adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan (July 2006) and the Draft South East Plan and all
representations received as a result of consultation.

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be reported at
the meeting.

Please note that the order in which applications are considered may alter to take account of
the Council’s public speaking arrangements. Applications where members of the public have
given notice that they wish to speak will be considered first.

Report 194/07 of the Deputy Director refers.

10. GOO0O/17829/3 Proposed erection of a garden shed. The Parsonage House,
Goosey, Faringdon Oxon, SN7 8PA.

(Wards Affected: Longworth)
(Pages 95 - 98)

11. HIN/19721/4 Erection of a terrace of 3 x 3 bedroom dwellings. Land adjoining 1
High Street, Hinton Waldrist, SN7 8RN

(Wards Affected: Longworth)
(Pages 99 - 111)

12. ASH/19908/3 Erection of a single dwelling, single garage and re-use existing
access (resubmission), Land adjoining Tilling, Berrycroft, Ashbury SN6 8LX

(Wards Affected: Craven)
(Pages 112 - 115)

13. ABG/20415 Erection of a first floor and rear extensions to an existing detached
bungalow, 174 Oxford Road, Abingdon, Oxfordshire, OX14 2AE

(Wards Affected: Abingdon Northcourt)

Vale of White Horse District Council



Development Control Committee Monday, 12th May, 2008

14.

15.

(Pages 116 - 126)

KEN/20447 Variation of condition 3 of planning permission KEN/7664 to exclude
number 5 Perkins from age restriction. Perkins, Upper Road, Kennington, OX1
5LN

(Wards Affected: Kennington and South Hinksey)
(Pages 127 - 132)

Enforcement Programme

(Wards Affected: Abingdon Caldecott)
To receive and consider the information relating to;

ABG/742/43-E Builders EDE. Abingdon Boat Marina, South Quay, Abingdon, OX14
5TW.

(Report to Follow )

Exempt Information under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972

None.

Vale of White Horse District Council



1USWIUOIIAUS [BINJBU pUE }|INg N0 aA0dwl pue 100101

aleA 8yl
uiyim sjdoad Jo spesu ayl 01 aAisuodsal pue 1UBIDILS ‘BAI108))a
ale yoym saoiales olgnd Auenb ybBiy 1ioddns pue apinold

Agenda Annex

|eizualod iny a8y}l asijes.
01 39BA 8yl ulyum sienpiaipul pue sdnoib pabBejueapesip djeH

8[BA 3U1 1ISIA 1O Ul YJOM ‘Ui 8Al OYM
Jle sujsuaq yotym Awouods ajqeurelsns pue Buolsis e abeinosug

S1UapISal B_A
Buowe sy1) jo Anjenb ay1 saoidwi pue Ajunwwod Jsjes e aiealn

SBAH} INO 1091J8 YDIYM SUOISIOap a8yl
0} 81NQ{IU0D pue AlUNWWOD JNo Ul Led 8)el ued sucAlons jey)
0s Jamod JO UOIIN|CASP pUB ‘UOIIR}NSUOD ‘UOIIBULIOJUI 0] $$830E
ybnoiylr 1uswonjoaul ofgnd pue Aoeroowsap |eoo| uayibusng

101 SWIE [IoUN0) 19111SI(] 8SI0H B1IYAA 1O 9JBA SU|

Allunwwoo sjeuoissedwiod
pue uado “uie) e pienBajes pue pjing o} SI UOISIA INQ

SIV ANV NOISIA HNO

3asAOH PYM JO
IV R

dojs sng=Sg  A3IN

1eeus X0
ey

3%

Z10v8
UOJLJOOM

T T
sapw g

uoptms
ol

piojbutiiep
oL

1s153ydI0Qq
oL

apejysa
o1

(8 unr)
orw oy

LOCATION MAP -

3s.40H a3Yym jo
OIVN



List of Planning Appeals

Start Appeal reference | Planning Appellant Location Development Hearing/ Area | Decision & Date
Date reference Public
Inquiry/Written
Representations
04.01.08 APP/V3120/A/08/206226 | ABG/4906/1 Mr and Mrs Garway, Radley Two storey side and rear North
3/WF Mead Road, Abingdon, extension together with internal
Oxon, OX14 3SN alterations to create additional Written
dwelling with associated Representations
parking
30.01.08 APP/V3120/H/08/120253 | ABG/19181/5 Pets at Home Unit J Fairacres Erection of llluminated Signage North Mixed decision
6 LTD Retail Park, 10.04.08
Abingdon,
Oxfordshire, OX14 Statement
1BY
25.01.08 APP/V3120/A/08/206381 | ABG/1615/51 Tescos Stores Tesco Stores Ltd Demolition of existing garden North
9/NWF LTD Marcham Road centre. Erection of extension to
Abingdon existing supermarket and car . .
mv Oxon park and other ancillary works. Public Inquiry
o)) OX141TU
«
12.02.08 APP/V3120/A/08/206541 | ABG/20203 Mr G Garbutt 14 Quakers Court, Erection of balcony structure North
~l 6/NWF Vineyard, and spiral staircase to rear of
g?(g?don property Written
OX14 1PY Representations
26.02.08 APP/V3120/A/08/206696 | ABG/3061/13- Mr B O'Brain Chinese Medicines | New signage North
7INWF LB 20 High Street
gk))(g?don Written_ (g
OX14 5AX representations g
R
04.04.08 APP/V3120/A/08/206857 | WTT/15277/1 Mr M Munday 169 Whitecrosss Erection of a conservatory North -
O0/NWF Abingdon Written C'_D'-
Oxon Representations 3
0OX13 6Bp
04.04.08 APP/V3120/A/08/207048 | CUM/19875/1 Banner Homes | 8 And Land Rear Demolition of No 8 Arnolds North o
8/NWF Ltd Of 6 And 10 Way. Erection of five detached Written
Arnolds W.ay dwellings. (Re-submission) Representations
Cumnor Hill
Oxford

Public Inquiries and Hearings Printed 30/04/2008



Start Appeal reference Planning Appellant Location Development Hearing/ Area | Decision & Date
Date reference Public
Inquiry/Written
Representations
OX2 9JB
10.04.08 APP/V3120/A/08/206697 | GAR/7203/11 Mr and Mrs m The Barn ngse, Erection of first floor extension Written North
5/WF Goodman Garford, Abingdon, Representations
OX13 5PF
18.10.07 APP/V3120/A/07/2055 | STE/5790/1 Mr R Tyrrell Barns At Change of use from agricultural Informal Hearing South
024/NWF Hanney Road sheds to B1 (Business) use.
Steventon
Abingdon
21.11.07 | APP/V3120/A/07/2059 | SUT/14050/1- | Mr And Mrs R | 7 Long Barn Erection of a single storey Written South
392/NWF X A Cowdrey High Street dwelling. Representations
Sutton Courtenay
Abingdon
10.12.07 APP/V3120/A/07/2059 | GRO/19921/1 Mr N Birch Land Adjoining Erection of a dwelling. (Re- Written South
742/\WF Willow Cottage submission) Representations
o Main Street
a Grove
((®) Wantage
(0)) Oxon
(0,9]
17.12.07 | APP/V3120/A/07/2061 | SUT/19974-X | Pavillon Ltd Land Adjoining Erection of four dwellings to Informal Hearing South
119/NWF Fishing Lake enable the restoration of fishing
Previously Old Ia}ke and assoc'iated off-site
Gravel Workings highways workings.
All Saints Lane
Sutton Courtenay
Abingdon
Oxon
30.01.08 APP/V3120/A/08/2064 | WAN/18828/1 Mr Sanders 9 Bryan Way Demolition of existing garage. Written reps South
358/WF And Mrs Wantage Erection of a one and a half
Wood oxon storey house and associated
OX12 7EH works.
08.02.08 APP/V3120/A/08/2065 | SUT/5851/5 Mr W And Mr Southfield Erection of a dwelling including Written reps South
246/WF J Stockdale Old Wallingford landscaping, car parking,
Way passing bay and shared access
Sutton Courtenay
Abingdon

Public Inquiries and Hearings Printed 30/04/2008




Start Appeal reference Planning Appellant Location Development Hearing/ Area | Decision & Date
Date reference Public
Inquiry/Written
Representations
Oxon
13.02.08 | APP/V3120/A/08/2066 | SUT/8151/4 Mr | 52 Tyrrells Way | Erection of a 1 bedroom Written reps South
485 Maconoche Sutton Courtenay | detached dwelling with parking
Abingdon for one vehicle. (Rear of 52
Oxon Tyrrells Way)
15.02.08 APP/V3120/H/08/1202 | CHI/1242/19-A | Primesight Murco Service Erection of 1 double sided pole Written reps South Dismissed
677 Station mounted display unit. 11.04.08
Chilton
Didcot
Oxon
11.03.08 APP/V3120/A/08/2063 | GRO/19143/2 Mr John Bell 5a Kingfisher, Erection of a new dwelling on Written South
218/WF Grove, Wantage, | land at 5A Kingfishers, Grove Representations
ox12 7JI Wantage. (Re-submission)
_009.04.08 APP/V3120/A/08/2070 | UFF/4131/2 Robert lles The Crest, Siting of a mobile home for Written South
294/WF Uffington 'Granny Annex’ Representations
€ 15.10.07 APP/V3120/C/07/2054 | EHE/19461/1- Mr J Cottrell Woods Farm Enforcement appeal against Informal Hearing South Withdrawn
(0] 709 E Barn, Woods unauthorised building 22.4.2008 27.3.08
e} Farm Road. East | operations and erection of
Hendred. ’ hardstanding. Change of use of
OX12 8JA land.
25.2.08 APP/V3120/08/20649 | EHE/1965/17- | Mr L Wells Greensands Enforcement appeal against Inquiry South
18 E East Hendred unauthorised building 14.10.2008
OX12 8JE operations and construction of
access road

G:\Admin\Committee Schedules\List of Forthcoming Public Inquiries and Hearings

Public Inquiries and Hearings Printed 30/04/2008




Agenda ltem 9

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL Report No. 195/07

Wards Affected — All

REPORT OF THE DEPUTY DIRECTOR ( PLANNING & COMMUNITY STRATEGY)

TO DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE
12 MAY 2008

Open Space, Sport and Recreation Supplementary Planning Document, Future Provision

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.0

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

Introduction and Report Summary

At the meeting of the Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group held on 22 October
2007 Members considered the Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD) prior to its publication for consultation. At a subsequent
meeting of the Strategic & Local Planning Advisory Group Members considered the
comments submitted during the consultation process and agreed to amending the SPD
as recommended in this report.

This report summarises the comments received during the consultation period and
recommends changes to the Supplementary Planning Document prior to its adoption.

The contact officer for this report is Alison Blyth, Principle Planning Officer, telephone
(01235) 547633. Email address Alison.blyth@whitehorsedc.co.uk.

Recommendations

(a) Members recommend to the Executive and to the Council to adopt the Open
Space, Sport and Recreation, Future Provision Supplementary Planning
Document subject to the changes set out in the appendix to this report.

(b)  the Council to implement the requirements of the Supplementary Planning
Document via the Development Control function on planning application for one
or more houses once a project officer is in place.

Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies

This report relates to the Council’s vision in that it supports the Council’s aim to
improve the quality of life for residents and to protect the natural environment and the
Council’s priority to create a cleaner, greener, safer and healthier community and
environment. This report does not conflict with any Council strategies.

In addition the report complies with the Council’'s Adopted Local Plan 2011 the
Community Strategy and the Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision
Strategy.

Summary of Risk

Failure to adopt the Open Space, Sport and Recreation, Future Provision Supplementary
Planning Document will result in the Council not meeting a target set out in the Local
Development Scheme and also prevent the Council from securing funds from new
development to mitigate its impact on open space, sport and recreation.

195/07

Page 10



4.0 Consultation

4.1 The draft SPD was published alongside the Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation
Provision Strategy. The strategy which was based on a wide ranging audit of the quality
and quantity of provision across the District identified the key issues facing the Council in
managing and developing open space, sport and recreation facilities across the District.
This strategy provides the justification for the Supplementary Planning Document. The
SPD seeks to ensure developers of new housing mitigate the impact of their
development on open space, sport and recreation by either providing new facilities on
site or contributing to off site provision.

4.2 The Draft SPD was placed on deposit alongside the Open Space, Sport and Recreation
Provision Strategy for a six week period from 1 November to 14 December 2007.

4.3 During the consultation period the Council employed a number of methods to ensure
awareness of the consultation process.

4.4 A letter was sent in advance of the publication of the SPD to all the 800 addresses on the
Local Development Framework database. The letter gave details of how and when
copies of the document could be obtained.

4.5 Copies of the draft SPD along with the draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Strategy
were sent to over 200 individuals and organisations including Parish and Town Councils,
Government Departments, sport and leisure interest groups, statutory organisations,
householders and planning consultants.

4.6 Copies of the draft SPD and accompanying documents were also available at all the
libraries in the District as well as at Didcot and Oxford.

4.7 A notice giving details of the consultation arrangements was published in the local
newspapers.

4.8 The above arrangements meet the requirements of the Council’'s adopted Statement of
Community Involvement.

4.9 Despite the extensive consultation during the consultation period only 13 comments were
received on the SPD from the following organisations:-

South Oxfordshire District Council
Kemp & Kemp, Property Consultants
Oxfordshire Playing Fields Association
Home Builders Federation
South East Regional Assembly
Stanford in the Vale Parish Council
PIPS Planning and Development Ltd
Natural England
Cumnor Parish Council
Buckland Parish Council
Berks, Bucks Wildlife Trust
Oxfordshire County Council
Harwell Parish Council

195/07

Page 11



4.10

4.11

Appendix 1 to this report includes a summary of the comments received along with a
suggested response proposed by your Officers. In some instances a change to the draft
SPD has been recommended in response to individual points. Appendix 2 contains a
copy of the draft SPG, with the proposed deletions struckout and the proposed new text
covered in a tone.

Implementation of SPD

Once the SPD is adopted its operation will generate additional work for Officers for

example:-

e providing advice to potential developers of one house and above on what their
contributions to open space, sport and recreation will be

e completion of legal agreements to ensure contributions are paid to the Council

e Kkeeping the audit of open space, sport and recreation up to date so that it can
continue to provide the underlying justification for the SPD and future requests for
financial contributions

e ensure money collected is spent on projects which will often be in partnership with
other organisations such as Parish Councils

e monitor the collection of contributions and expenditure on projects.

Most of the above tasks will be carried out by a new post being created in the Contracts
and Procurement Division. Until that post is operational it will not be possible to fully
implement the SPD.

RODGER HOOD
DEPUTY DIRECTOR (PLANNING & COMMUNITY STRATEGY)

Background Papers:

Comments received in response to publication of draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation,

Future

195/07

Provision Supplementary Planning Document.

Page 12



Appendix 1

Vale of White Horse District Council
Draft SPD on Open Space, Sport and Recreation Future Provision

Report on Responses to Consultation

Following approval of the draft SPD on Open Space, Sport and Recreation Future
Provision by the Local Planning Advisory Group held on 22nd October, the Council invited
comments on the draft from the Vale’s residents, neighbouring local authorities and a
range of other statutory and non-statutory organisations. This document summarises
the comments received, provides a brief response to them and identifies how the
Council has amended the SPD.

As a result of the consultation, the Council has added several new paragraphs to the SPD
and this has obviously resulted in some changes to paragraph numbering. For the sake
of simplicity, the paragraph numbers referred to in the second column below (headed
“Number”) are those in the original and not the amended version of the document.

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh
Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreati@ Provisio D Consultation 1 of 27
age’i



Number

Organisation
South East Regional Assembly 1
South Oxfordshire District 2
Council

0

Q

Q

()

—h

AN
Kemp and Kemp, Property 3

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

Comment

Support the guidance and approach

Need to include provision for cross-
boundary contributions in Section 4,
particularly in relation to
developments which occur close to
the South Oxfordshire/Vale of White
Horse boundary.

The status of the draft strategy is

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

Response

Thank you

Excellent point; clear need for
VoWHDC and SODC discussion and
agreement

It is not intended to be an SPD

2 of 27

Proposed changes to SPD

No change needed
New paragraph at 1.12 as follows:
“Large Scale and Cross-boundary Developments

1.12 For large scale developments the
District Council will normally prepare a planning
brief or expect developers to submit a design
brief and/or masterplan to ensure
developments are well designed, based on clear
and consistent sustainable principles. This
requirement is particularly important in relation
to proposals that cross the local authority
boundary, such as at Didcot. In such cases, the
masterplan may suggest an alternative
approach that will deliver the Council’s vision
but does not apply the Council’s adopted
provision standards in all respects. Once the
Council has approved the design brief or
masterplan, it will expect development
proposals to conform to the principles and
standards set out in it and therefore may not
require individual developments to conform to
all of its adopted provision standards.
However, the Council will reserve the right to
require developers to meet its adopted
standards if particular proposals do not
conform satisfactorily to the approved design
brief or masterplan.”

The following sentence has been added to



G| abed

Consultants, Oxford

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

not clear; it is not an SPD

Paragraph 2.4: Developers should
not be required to bring existing
quality

standard.

Paragraph 2.11: Sheltered housing
will not automatically increase the
demand for amenity space if they
accommodate existing residents.

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

See paragraph 2.3. Paragraph 33
of PPG17 is explicit on this point:

used as a means to remedy local
deficiencies in the quantity or
quality of open space, sports and
recreation provision. Local
authorities will be justified in
seeking planning obligations where
the quantity or quality of provision
is inadequate or under threat, or
where new development increases
local needs”

Agreed, but because of the limited
mobility of many residents of
sheltered housing there will very
often be a need for on-site

3 of 27

Paragraph 1.2:

“However, neither the Strategy nor its related
Background Document are part of the Council’s
Local Development Framework.”

New paragraph added at 1.7 as follows:

“1.7 This SPD was adopted by the District
Council at its meeting of the full Council held
on 21 May 2008. The Council will monitor its
effectiveness and review its content at regular
intervals to ensure that it remains relevant and
compliant with Government advice on the use
of planning conditions and obligations and any
future reviews of the Council’s adopted Open
Space, Sport and Recreation Provision Strategy.”

No change needed

No change needed



9} ebed

6 Paragraph 3.3: It should be possible
for the District Council to hand over
open space management to a Parish
Council.

7 Paragraph 3.8: SUDS are a relatively
new feature. It is clearly in the
interests of all concerned for them
to form an integral part of the
overall management regime for open
spaces.

8 Paragraph 3.5-3.7: The requirement
for a commuted maintenance sum to
cover 25 years maintenance is
excessive; it should be 10-15 years

9 There should be scope to phase the
payment of commuted sums rather

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

provision

Agreed. However, the SPD does not
preclude this.

Agreed. However, this does not
mean that the Council should
necessarily take on responsibility
for their long term management
and maintenance

Paragraph 3.3 of the SPD sets out
an alternative approach for
developers who are not willing to
provide a 25-year commuted sum.
However, the Council has also
agreed to reduce the period for
commuted sums to 20 years.

It will generally be much better for
all payments to be made upfront in

4 of 27

Paragraph 3.3 first bullet point amended to
read “The handing over of the spaces or
facilities to the District Council or other
appropriate body (such as the relevant town or
parish council) for adoption, plus an
appropriate ...”

In addition, paragraph 3.5 amended to read
“The Council or other appropriate body (such as
the relevant town or parish council) may be
willing to adopt and subsequently manage ...”

No change needed

Paragraph 3.5: Period for commuted sums
reduced from 25 to “20 years”.

Paragraph 3.3 add note to end “This approach
is designed to be compatible with paragraph
B18 of DCLG Circular 5/2005,Planning
Obligations, which indicates that Councils can
require developers to make arrangements for
the management and maintenance in perpetuity
of spaces and facilities intended predominantly
for the residents or users of a proposed
development”

New paragraphs 3.8 and 4.21 as follows:



/| ebed

than developers having to make the
payment upfront.

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

case a developer ceases trading.
Payment in instalments will be
acceptable only (a) against defined
trigger points for large
developments (eg when 25%, 50%,
75% 100% of dwellings are
completed) or (b) if developers are
willing to provide a bond that will
guarantee the payment of the
commuted sums over a period.

5 of 27

“Large and Phased Developments - Payment of
Commuted Sums

3.8 If the Council or another appropriate
body (such as the relevant town or parish
council) is to adopt on-site or other spaces or
facilities, it is likely that they will be completed
and ready for handover and adoption at
different times during the construction of large
or phased developments. When this will be the
case, the Council is willing in principle to allow
the payment of commuted sums on a phased
basis which matches the points at which it or
the other appropriate body adopts the spaces
or facilities. However, this will always be
conditional upon:

e The spaces or facilities being in a fully
adoptable condition in all respects

e Any related commuted sums being index-
linked from the date of the grant of
planning permission to the date of
payment

e The dates or other trigger point at which
spaces or facilities are to be adopted being
agreed in writing before the start of the
development on site

Large and Phased Developments - Payment of
Contributions

4.21 The need for infrastructure provision
or enhancements funded by developer
contributions arises as developments are built
out and the new dwellings occupied. This
means that it would be unreasonable to require



g1 abed

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

6 of 27

all contributions to be paid to the Council
before commencement of large or phased
developments on site. For developments of
over 100 dwellings, or where the construction
of a development is to be separated into clearly
identified phases, the Council will be willing in
principle to negotiate arrangements in the
planning agreement to allow the payment of
contributions in a way that matches the rate at
which the need for the infrastructure will arise.
It will normally do this by agreeing suitable and
clearly identified trigger points, for example
before the start of works on site and when 33%
and 67% of the dwellings are complete. These
percentages are purely illustrative and other
triggers may be appropriate in relation to
specific developments. The Council may also
require the developer to provide a bond to
guarantee payment of all phased contributions.
This arrangement will comply with paragraph
B17 of DCLG Circular 5/20005, Planning
Obligations.”

Indexation

4.22 Where contributions are to be phased
the Council will require them to be index-linked
from the date of the grant of planning
permission to the date of payment. There are
several published cost indices that the Council
could wuse when indexing contributions.
However, it will normally use the Department of
Trade and Industry Tender Price Index of Public
Sector Non-Housing (PUBSEC) Smoothed All-in
Index



61 abed

10

11

12

13

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

Paragraph 4.8: It is unclear how the
Council defines “the area”. Further
clarification is required. A cross
reference to the standards in
Appendix A will aid clarity.

Paragraph 4.9, second sentence.
This sentence is not necessary.

Paragraph 4.13: the Model should be
available for comment.

Appendix A: the requirements differ
slightly from the NPFA Six Acre
Standard. They should be in

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

As a consequence of adding
paragraphs 3.8 and 3.9 it is
necessary to add a paragraph
relating to indexation

See the third bullet point of
paragraph 4.8 and the Distance
Thresholds in Appendix A

Agreed

Agreed and it will be

Why? Paragraph 6 of PPG17 states
“The Government believes that
open space standards are best set

7 of 27

New paragraph 3.9 added as follows:

“Indexation

3.9 There are several published cost
indices that the Council could use when
indexing contributions or commuted sums.
However, the indices that the Council will
normally use are:

e  For construction works: the Department of
Trade and Industry Tender Price Index of
Public Sector Non-Housing (PUBSEC)
Smoothed All-in Index

e For commuted sums: the Index of Retail
Prices”

Paragraph 4.9 third bullet point amended to
read:

“However, the additional demands arising from
the development must be met within a
reasonable distance of it. This “reasonable
distance” will vary with the nature of the
infrastructure and is set out in the Council’s
standards in an Appendix to this SPD.”

Second sentence deleted

No change needed

No change needed



0z abed

Oxfordshire Playing Fields
Association

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

14

15

16

accordance with the Standard.

Paragraph 2.8: what is the source of
the occupancy rates?

Table: question the omission of
payments for allotments for hostels
and special needs housing.

Paragraph 4.24: there are
inconsistencies in the document.
Greenspace provision seems to be
required for developments of more
than one dwelling but paragraph 1.3
relates to more than 15 dwellings.

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

locally. National standards cannot
cater for local circumstances, such
as different demographic profiles
and the extent of existing built
development in an area”

Oxfordshire County Council
provided the occupancy rates in the
draft SPD. The County Council has
confirmed the rates apart from that
for dwellings of unknown size,
which the District Council has
reduced from 2.5 to 2.3

District Council has agreed to add
a requirement that the developers
of these types of dwelling may
need to make or contribute to
allotment provision

Paragraph 1.3 relates to current
Local Plan policy H23. The SPD
reflects the approach the Council is
planning to take in its forthcoming
LDF.

8 of 27

Paragraph 2.9 amend occupancy rate for
dwellings of unknown size to 2.3 and note
added to give the source of the figures plus a
commitment to review them from time to time,
as follows:

“Note: these figures derive from a survey of
new residential developments in Oxfordshire
undertaken by the Demographic and Social
Statistics Adviser in the County Council’s
Strategic Policy and Economic Development Unit
during 2005. The County Council intends to
review the figures from time to time and the
District Council will then amend the above
occupancy levels as appropriate.”

Table entitled “Types of residential
development to which open space, sport and
recreation provision standards will apply”
amended to require allotment provision in
relation to hostels and special needs housing

Paragraph 1.3 amended to set out the existing
policy basis underpinning the SPD more clearly
as follows:

. “Local Plan Policies L1 and L4, which seek
to protect existing outdoor play space and
allotments but allow development of them
for other uses where this will not



12 ebed

17 Formal Play Provision: need for
evidence to back up the details of

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

Contained in the background
report, available at public libraries

9 of 27

exacerbate or create a local deficiency

. Local Plan Policy L2, which protects all
urban open space defined on the
proposals map

. Local Plan Policy L7, which protects local
leisure facilities unless there is no longer a
need for the facility or an alternative
provision of equal or better quality is
made available

. Local Plan Policy H23, which requires new
housing developments of over 15
dwellings or 0.5 ha to provide 15% public
open space and requires suitable
arrangements for future management and
maintenance of the open space to be in
place

. Local Plan Policies H15 and H7, which set
out a list of spaces and facilities to be
provided in association with the proposed
major developments at Didcot and Grove

. Local Plan Policy DC8, which aims to
ensure an adequate and timely supply of
social and physical infrastructure to meet
the needs of the occupiers or users of new
development”

New paragraph 1.4 added as follows:

“The Council’s forthcoming Local Development
Framework will set out that the Council intends
to seek planning obligations for all
developments of one or more dwellings and not
only 15 or more as set out in current Local Plan
Policy H23.”

No change needed



22 abed

18

19

20

21

22

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

the recommended standards.

Does “everyone” mean young people
of all ages? Some walk faster than
others.

The NPFA Six Acre Standard says
that 400 m takes 5 minutes and 600
m takes 15 minutes. The current
wording takes no account of
different ages and the different
times it takes different ages.

The quantity standard and minimum
size (assumes a population of 1,000)
seem to link to the standard for a
LEAP.

Under General Characteristics the 30
m away seems to link to a larger
than LEAP area -LEAP would
normally have a 10 m buffer.

Are the distances to the wall of the
nearest building or to its boundary?

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

throughout the Vale

“Everyone” means “all people” and
therefore includes people of all
ages, whether young or not. The
distance thresholds are based on a
typical walking speed. If itis
necessary to use different speeds
for different people, why not
different speeds for walking uphill
and downhill, in the rain or sunny
weather and so on?

See response to comment 18.

In passing, OPFA has misquoted
the Six Acre Standard. Table 3 of
the Standard gives the 5
minutes/400 m distance is a
pedestrian route (or “on the
ground”) threshold and the 15
minutes/600 m one as a straight
line (or “as the crow flies”) one.

Incorrect assumption.

The proposed local standards do
not relate to a LEAP

“From the nearest dwelling” implies
the wall of the nearest dwelling”.

10 of 27

No change needed

No change needed.

No change needed.

No change needed

Appendix A, page 19, General characteristics,
first bullet point amend to read:



oz abed

23

24

25

26

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

If suggesting a larger than Six Acre
Standard buffer zone what is the
evidence to suggest that 10m is not
adequate.?

The aim seems to be to achieve a
composite of a LEAP and NEAP and
this is not likely to be effective.
There is a need to adopt a hierarchy
of play spaces. If you do adopt a
hierarchy approach, there will be a
need to have a reference to the Six
Acre Standard re rural provision
which does not point to a composite
because a hierarchy is not practical.

Bullet Point 6 under General
Characteristics: we do not favour
this over prescriptive approach by
ruling out these types of surfacing.

Bullet point 8: gates should not
necessarily open out if site is near a
danger point. The size of site may
not be large enough to
accommodate ball games - this is
something for a NEAP but not a
LEAP.

Bullet point 1 is a mixture of a LEAP
and a NEAP - 5 items of equipment
= LEAP but design for all ages =

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

This is a policy decision by the
District Council. What evidence is
there than that 10 m is always
adequate?

The aim is to achieve appropriate
provision for the Vale, not comply
with the Six Acre Standard. See
also response to comment 23.

Presumably this is a comment on
the fifth bullet point. It is up to the
Vale to specify which surfaces it
regards as acceptable and those it
does not.

Presumably this is a comment on
the seventh bullet point. Outward
opening gates do not allow dogs to
enter the play area by pushing
open the gate and become trapped
inside

LEAPs and NEAPs are outmoded
concepts.

11 of 27

“Sited minimum of 10 m from the nearest
dwelling boundary or 30 m from the nearest
door or window of the nearest dwelling,
whichever is less, and to include buffer planting
to screen site without compromising passive
surveillance”

No change needed.

No change needed.

No change needed

No change needed



g ebed

27

28

29

30

31

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

NEAP.

We cannot endorse a policy of
separate provision for disabled
children. Suggest merging of bullet
points 1 and 2 to say “Not less than
5 types of equipment, some of
which should be accessible to
disabled users”.

ATPs: on what evidence is the
accessibility standard based? Is the
quantity standard derived from
background studies?

Grass sports pitches: on what
evidence is the quantity standard
based?

Minimum size - one pitch would also
need changing facilities

Pitches, practice areas and other
facilities, bullet point 4: this would
not be suitable for cricket.

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

There is no suggestion in the SPD
or proposed standards of separate
provision for children with
disabilities but desirable to amend
SPD to clarify this

Contained in the background
report, available at public libraries
throughout the Vale

Contained in the background
report, available at public libraries
throughout the Vale

Agreed

Agreed

12 of 27

Appendix A, page 19, Facilities and features,
first bullet point:

“Not less than 5 types of equipment to provide
a variety of challenges and experiences
designed for a range of ages, at least some of
which should be suitable for disabled users”

Second bullet point deleted

No change needed

No change needed

Appendix A, page 27 top bullet point amended
to read:

“Two pitches with changing accommodation
and parking in Abingdon, Botley (as defined on
the Local plan proposals map), Faringdon,
Grove and Wantage; one pitch with changing
accommodation in all other areas”

Appendix A, page 28, Pitches, Practice Areas
and other Facilities, 4th bullet point amend to
read:

“No end to end slope on football, hockey,
lacrosse or rugby or other winter season pitches



Gz abed

Home Builders Federation 32
33
34
35
Stanford in the Vale Parish 36
Council
37

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

Summarises various points from
DCLG Circular 5/2005, particularly
regarding the tests of
reasonableness for a planning
obligation. The SPD seems to be
starting from a presumption that
there is no existing open space in
the District and that all new
developments will need to make full
provision.

The SPD must be amended to
recognise that the nature and extent
of any planning obligation sought
will take account of existing
surpluses and deficiencies in
provision.

Paragraph 2.8: the occupancy rates
seem very high. The SPD should
provide the source and justification
for them and a commitment to
review them as new information
becomes available.

A maintenance period of 25 years is

excessive and unreasonable.

No further dwellings without
addressing our present needs

Closer meaningful partnership

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

The SPD includes a summary of the
relevant points from Circular
5/2005. There is no presumption
that there is no existing open
space in the District and the “Line
of Thinking” after paragraph 2.6
makes this clear.

By following the Line of Thinking in
the diagram following paragraph
2.6 the Council will take full
account of the location, size and
quality of existing provision.

Oxfordshire County Council
provided the occupancy rates in the
draft SPD. The County Council has
confirmed the rates apart from that
for dwellings of unknown size,
which the District Council has
reduced from 2.5 to 2.3

See response to point 8

Not a matter for the SPD

Welcome, but not a matter for the

13 of 27

greater than 1:40 (1:80 preferable); no side to
side slope greater than 1:40 (1:60 preferable)”

No change needed

No change needed

See comment to 14 above.

Period for commuted sums changed to 20
years.

No change needed

No change needed



9z abed

38
RPS Planning and 39
Development Ltd
Natural England (NE) 40
41
42
43

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

between the PC and VoWHDC
required

Assistance from DC and CC for at
least 12 acres of open space

Paragraph 2.8: the SPD should
clearly set out how the Council has
determined the quoted occupancy
rates, including that for dwellings of
unknown size

NE wishes to see a clear emphasis
on conserving and enhancing
biodiversity within the open space
strategy

The green infrastructure should
incorporate established sites of
national, regional and local
importance and protect them from
the potentially adverse impacts of
development.

Would like to see a clear focus on
using native species in any future
planting of open areas.

Important to promote the
appropriate type and level of
recreational uses with sensitive
habitats protected against overuse.

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

SPD

This is a matter for the LDF

Oxfordshire County Council
provided the occupancy rates in the
draft SPD. The County Council has
confirmed the rates apart from that
for dwellings of unknown size,
which the District Council has
reduced from 2.5 to 2.3

This is a comment on the strategy
rather than the SPD. However, the
standards set out in the SPD refer
repeatedly to nature conservation
and biodiversity.

This will be done through LDF
policy

With climate change, some native
species may be increasingly
inappropriate

Agreed, but policy issue for the
LDF and not the SPD

14 of 27

No change needed

See comment to response 14 above.

No change needed

No change needed

No change needed

No change needed



/2 abed

44

45

46

47

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

NE reminds the Council of its duties
to take full account of important
areas for nature conservation,
including SSSIs, SACs, and avoid
damage to these sites when
considering where to place mineral
development and waste
management facilities.

Recommend that the Council seeks
to advice of the County’s landscape
and wildlife teams, in conjunction
with the Berks, Bucks and Oxon
Wildlife Trust in developing
strategies and considering individual
development proposals.

The presence of protected species is
a material consideration in any
planning decision.

NE recommends the use of its
Accessible Natural Greenspace
Standard (ANGSt).

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

Acknowledged. However, this
relates to development
management and not the SPD. In
addition, mineral development is a
County Council responsibility.

Accepted. However, this relates to
development management and not
the SPD

Agreed. However, this relates to
development management and not
the SPD. It will be covered by
appropriate Local Development
Framework policies.

Not accepted. Paragraph 6 of
PPG17 states “The Government
believes that open space standards
are best set locally. National
standards cannot cater for local
circumstances, such as different
demographic profiles and the
extent of existing built
development in an area”. Just as
the NPFA Six Acre Standard cannot
reflect local circumstance, neither
can ANGSt.

15 of 27

No change needed

No change needed

No change needed

No change needed



gz abed

Cumnor Parish Council

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

48

49

50

51

Cumnor PC has not seen the
background report.

Will the accessibility standard be as
set out in Appendix A?

Are there different standards for
urban and rural areas? Is Cumnor
rural or urban?

Is compliance with only the driving
distance threshold acceptable in all
cases where driving is mentioned as
a means of access in Appendix A?

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

Contained in the background
report, available at public libraries
throughout the Vale

Yes

The provision standards identify
the “urban” areas of the Vale; it
follows that other areas are “rural”.
However, Cumnor is different in
nature from other parishes in that
part of it is “urban” and part “rural”.
Given this, the District Council has
decided to classify Cumnor as an
“urban” parish.

The main use for driving thresholds
is in relation to major sports
facilities such as sports halls, pools
and artificial turf pitches. The level
of provision of these facilities
required in order that all residents
of the District could walk or cycle
to them would be unrealistic,
unaffordable and unsustainable.
However, in the rural areas of the
Vale it will often be the case that
residents of one parish will have to
drive to another to make use of
certain types of provision.
Therefore the Appendix to the SPD
also includes driving thresholds for
some other forms of provision such
as allotments and parks.

16 of 27

No change needed

No change needed

Appendix A amended to include Botley (as
defined on the local plan proposals map) as one
of the Vale’s urban areas

Appendix A, page 2 add new paragraph as
follows:

“Accessibility Standards/Distance Thresholds

The Council’s accessibility standards are
expressed as thresholds:  the
maximum time and distance that potential
users should have to travel. Different forms of
provision can have any combination of walking,
cycling and driving thresholds. Where a
particular form of provision has more than one
type of threshold, the Council will normally
apply the most onerous in the urban areas of
the District and the least onerous in the rural
areas. However, in the urban areas if it is not
practicable to have the required provision
within the most onerous threshold - for
example because the land that would be

distance



62 obed

Buckland Parish Council 52
Harwell Parish Council 53
Berks, Bucks and Oxon 54

Wildlife Trust (BBOWT)

Oxfordshire County Council: 55
Environment and Economy

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

The Parish Council welcomes and No comment needed

agrees with this SPD.

Where the District Council is to seek  Agreed
contributions towards enhancing

existing facilities that it does not

own, it should say more about how

it will ensure that the enhancements

are carried out if the developer is

providing only a proportion of the

costs.

SPD does not sufficiently address the Valid point
potential of the local authority to

contribute to biodiversity

conservation through the provision

and management of open spaces

Suggest mention of Structure Plan Agreed
G3

17 of 27

required is not available - it will apply the next
most onerous.”

No change needed

New paragraph 4.19 added to read:

“The contributions received from a development
will not always be sufficient fully to fund the
required enhancements of existing spaces or
facilities. In these circumstances the District
Council will seek to aggregate contributions
from other developments in the same area so
that the required enhancements are affordable.
If this is unlikely to be achievable within an
acceptable timescale, the Council will seek to
fund the balance of costs from other sources
such as grant aid, other external funding, from
its own resources or, for sites that it does not
own, the site owner.”

Appendix A, page 3 Design Objectives, bullet
point 8 amended to read:

“Sustainability: the design and management of
greenspaces should actively promote
environmental sustainability and nature
conservation, for example by protecting,
restoring or creating new habitats ...”

Paragraph 1.3 amended to refer to the
Development Plan rather than the Local Plan

and include the following as bullet point one:

“Structure Plan Policy G3, /nfrastructure and



0g abed

56

57

58

59

60

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

Paragraph 1.3: suggest change to
“enter into a planning obligation”

Paragraph 1.3: welcome a sentence
defining recreation provision. SPD
does not cover museums, Libraries
and rights of way.

Paragraph 1.3: add statement that
the document will be reviewed and
updated as appropriate

Paragraph 1.9: make clear that youth
facilities are distinct from Youth
Service Provision

Paragraph 2.8: source of average
occupancy figures data should be
included

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

Sub-clause (iii) of Local Plan Policy
DCS8 specifically states “an
appropriate financial contribution”

Paragraph 1.9 sets out the types of
provision to which the SPD relates.

Agreed

Agreed

Oxfordshire County Council
provided the occupancy rates in the
draft SPD. The County Council has
confirmed the rates apart from that
for dwellings of unknown size,
which the District Council has
reduced from 2.5 to 2.3

18 of 27

Service Provision, which states that proposals
will not be permitted unless the relevant
planning authority is satisfied that the
necessary infrastructure is available or will be
provided”

No change needed.

No change needed

See response to comment 3 above.

Paragraph 1.11 amended to define youth
facilities as follows:

“Youth facilities (this relates to physical
infrastructure for informal use by young people,
such as skateboard areas and shelters, and
does not include County Council Youth Service
provision)”

See response to 14 above.



61 Paragraph 2.9: paragraph speaks of  Good point
net change in dwellings but actually

Paragraph 2.10 amended to read:

1€ abed

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

refers to net change in population

“If the proposed development site includes
existing temporary or permanent dwellings that
have been occupied within one year before the
date of receipt of the planning application , the
Council will normally use the anticipated net
change in the number of residents.”

62 Page 8 table: significant impact if a Replacing a 1-bedroom flat with a No change needed
1-bedroom flat is replaced by a 5 5-bedroom house will require will
bedroom house require considerable ingenuity ...
particularly if it is not on the
ground floor
63 Page 8 table: what if temporary This has never been a significant No change needed
dwellings (eg caravans) are being issue in the Vale to date.
replaced?
64 Paragraph 4.1 explain planning The SPD is intended for developers, Paragraph 4.1 amended to include a summary

obligations, planning agreements
and unilateral undertakings

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

who are likely to be familiar with
these terms. Para 4.1 does give a
brief explanation of why a
proposed development can give
rise to a planning obligation.

19 of 27

of the differences between planning
agreements and unilateral undertaking as
follows:

“The difference between them is simple. In a
planning agreement, the developer and/or land
owner(s) and the relevant local authority, both
“covenant” (a legal term which effectively means
“undertake” or “promise”) to do certain things.
For example, the developer might covenant to
pay an amount of money (a “contribution”) to
the local authority, which in turn enters into a
“reciprocal covenant” to use that money for the
purpose or in the way set out in the agreement.
Unilateral undertakings, on the other hand, are
effectively one-sided planning agreements: the



2e abed

65 Paragraph 4.2: change wording to
“one or both of two reasons”

66 Paragraph 4.8: change to “the
Council will not ask developers to
fund a greater amount of
infrastructure than that needed to
satisfactorily accommodate the
additional pressures or any loss of
facilities created by their
development”

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

Wording of paragraph is a little
clumsy

“Satisfactorily” is not needed

20 of 27

developer/land owner covenants to do
something that will make the development
acceptable to the local authority (for example,
to pay a contribution of £X to the local authority
for it to use to enhance local greenspace), but
the local authority does not enter into any
reciprocal covenants. In this context, the term
“local authority” can have a wide meaning; it
frequently includes the District Council, as the
local planning authority, and the County
Council in several distinct roles, for example as
the Highways Authority, the Education Authority
and the Library Authority."

Para 4.3 amended to read

“In most instances, the need for a planning
agreement will arise because:

- The development will result in additional
pressures on existing open spaces, sport and
recreation facilities which cannot reasonably be
sustained

- It would not be realistic, or sensible in land
use terms, for the Council to require the
developer to mitigate these pressures on land
in the developer’s ownership”

Paragraph 4.9: “that” omitted so the fourth
bullet now reads:

“The proposed mitigation must be fairly and
reasonably related in scale and kind to the
proposed development: the Council will not ask
developers to fund a greater amount of
infrastructure than needed to accommodate the



cg abed

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

67

68

69

Paragraph 4.11: should not assume
development will produce a net
increased in population; there may
be a net decrease

Paragraph 4.14: mention monitoring
cost if not included in 10% on-cost

Paragraph 4.18: phased payments
should be index linked

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

There are very few instances of
developers reducing the density of
development on a site and if they
do the Model will not suggest a
need for additional infrastructure

This was an oversight and the
Council has decided to increase the
figure to 15%. However, the
Council will monitor the costs
associated with negotiating,
monitoring and if necessary
enforcing planning agreements and
will amend the SPD from time to
time in accordance with its findings
on this issue.

Valid point

21 of 27

additional
development”

pressures created by their

Paragraph 4.12 first bullet point amend to read:

“Calculates the likely on-site population of the
proposed development and the net increase or
decrease in the local population”

Paragraph 4.15 sixth bullet point amended to
read:

“A 15% on-cost, to cover monitoring, project
procurement and management by the Council”

New paragraphs 3.8 and 3.9 added to read as
follows:

“Large and Phased Developments - Payment of
Commuted Sums

3.8 If the Council or another appropriate
body (such as the relevant town or parish
council) is to adopt on-site or other spaces or
facilities, it is likely that they will be completed
and ready for handover and adoption at
different times during the construction of large
or phased developments. When this will be the
case, the Council is willing in principle to allow
the payment of commuted sums on a phased
basis which matches the points at which it or



¢ abed

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

70

71

Paragraph 4.19: the term “shopping Accepted
list” could be misconstrued as

indicating the measures are not all

necessary in accordance with

circular 5/2005.

Paragraph 4.19: if there is a Agreed

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

22 of 27

the other appropriate body adopts the spaces
or facilities.  However, this will always be
conditional upon:

e The spaces or facilities being in a fully
adoptable condition in all respects

e Any related commuted sums being index-
linked from the date of the grant of
planning permission to the date of
payment

e The dates or other trigger point at which
spaces or facilities are to be adopted being
agreed in writing before the start of the
development on site”

Indexation

3.9 There are several published cost
indices that the Council could use when
indexing contributions or commuted sums.
However, the indices that the Council will
normally use is for construction works the
Department of Trade and Industry Tender Price
Index of Public Sector Non-Housing (PUBSEC)
Smoothed All-in Index and for commuted
sums, the Index of Retail Price.

Paragraph 4.23 first sentence amended to read:

“The District Council is well aware that there is
potentially a long list of forms of community
infrastructure provision towards which it and
the County Council will wish to seek
contributions.”

Paragraph 23 add new sentence at end as



Gg abed

Oxfordshire County Council: 72
Rights of Way

73

74

75

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

significant County requirement the
confidentiality should include
County staff

Paragraph 1.7, Vision: reword to “...
open spaces, green linking routes,
and indoor ...”

Paragraph 1.9: typology includes
green corridors but they are not
included in the assessments.
Danger that green corridors (which
should include public rights of way)
will not be sought from developers

Appendix A: add “All measures for
public rights of way must first be
agreed with Oxfordshire County
Council”

Appendix A, Natural Greenspace
Standards: the Council should adopt
and then apply ANGST. It should
increase the amount of NGS
available to its residents and the

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

The vision has been approved by
the Council

This is a District document. Rights
of way are a County function - as
confirmed by later County
comments. If rights of way are to
be included, why not highways, so
should schools, libraries, fire and
rescue etc.

This is a District document. Rights
of way are a County function.

See response to Comment 47

23 of 27

follows:

“The County Council will give a similar
undertaking if it is party to the viability
information as a result of having a significant
infrastructure requirement that the developer
regards as unaffordable.”

No change needed

Para 1.11 amend to give definition of green
corridor as follows:

“Green corridors within urban areas (excluding
rights of way, which are a County Council
responsibility)”

Appendix A, page 4 first bullet point under
General Design Principles add:

“Green spaces should be linked to local
pedestrian and cycle path systems wherever
possible, including rights of way, bridlepaths
and quiet lanes (note: rights of way and other
means of access to the countryside are a
County Council function and any proposed
changes to existing path systems in the
countryside must be agreed with it)”

No change needed



9¢ abed

linkages to them along green

corridors including public rights of

way.

76 Appendix A, Green Corridors: add
more detail (specific suggestions
included in County comment)

77 General characteristics: add “All
measures for public rights of way
must first be agreed with the
Countryside Services, Oxfordshire
County Council, to ensure they are

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

Good suggestions from the County

This is a District document. Rights
of way are a County function - as
confirmed by later County
comments. If rights of way are to
be included, why not highways, so

24 of 27

Appendix A, page 14 under General
Characteristics add following bullet points:

e (Clear signposted links to the wider
network of cycling and pedestrian routes
where appropriate in order to integrate
developments with their surroundings and,
where possible, public rights of way

e  Where possible, extending public rights of
way and access to the countryside for
informal recreation. (Note: any measures
relating to public rights of way must be
agreed with the Countryside Service of
Oxfordshire County Council)

e Surface treatments, landscaping and
infrastructure items (eg gates, signage,
information and lighting) to be appropriate
to the use of the paths and character of the
local area

Appendix A, page 15 under Accessibility add:

e All routes through developments to be
based on historical routes or existing
desire lines and use landscape features as
much as possible

Appendix A, page 4 under General Design
Principles first bullet point amend to read:

“Green spaces should be linked to local
pedestrian and cycle path systems wherever



/€ obed

Oxfordshire County Council: 78

Biodiversity and Landscape

Resources
79
80
81

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

appropriate to the user type,
character and location of the area”

Design objectives: biodiversity
should be an over-arching theme in
all planning policy documents and
must be taken into account in the
management of all open spaces

The Vale should see greenspace as
an opportunity to improve the
landscape of the Vale

Link greenspaces and minimise
fragmentation to maximise
sustainability

Managing spaces with biodiversity in
mind will ensure the Vale meets it
duty under the NERC Act to “have
regard to the purpose of conserving
biodiversity” by “restoring or

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

should schools, libraries, fire and

rescue etc.

Valid point

This is beyond the scope of this

SPD

Valid point

Valid point

25 of 27

possible, including rights of way, bridlepaths
and quiet lanes (note: rights of way and other
means of access to the countryside are a
County Council function and any proposed
changes to existing path systems in the
countryside must be agreed with it).”

Appendix A, page 3 under Design Objectives
bullet point 8 amend to read:

“Sustainability: the design and management of
greenspaces should actively promote
environmental sustainability and nature
conservation, for example by protecting,
restoring or creating new habitats ...”

No change needed

Appendix A, page 3 Design Objectives bullet
point 4 amend to read:

“Ease of movement: it should be easy to get to
and move through spaces and individual public
spaces should be linked with one another as
much as possible and designers should not
propose fragmented greenspace provision if it
is avoidable. In residential areas, people should
generally have priority over vehicles.”

See response to comment 78 above.



g¢ abed

enhancing habitat”

82 In accordance with Structure Plan
policy EN2, the Vale should manage
natural greenspace in a way that
“safeguards, maintains and expands
UK BAP priority habitat”

83 Highways supports the accessibility
standards and would expect to be
consulted on individual planning

applications
Oxfordshire County Council: 84 The documents lack reference to
Social and Community facilities for disabled people
Services

Vale offices

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

Valid point; will be covered by
changes above

This is normal practice

Appendix A includes several
paragraphs in the section on
“Accessibility” that set out the
importance of ensuring that spaces
and facilities are accessible to
people with disabilities

Additional changes introduced by
the Council

26 of 27

See response to comment 78 above.

No change needed

No change needed

Paragraph 4.28 amend to read:

“In order to aid transparency, reduce legal costs
and speed up their preparation, the Council has
prepared a standard form of draft planning
agreement relating to greenspace, sport and
recreation provision. Copies are available from
the Council’s Offices or can be downloaded
from its website www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk. In
addition, and in order to help the Council
determine planning applications as quickly as
possible, it will require draft heads of terms for
a planning agreement or unilateral undertaking
alongside any planning application for
developments of 10 or more dwellings before it
will validate the application. This new




65 abed

Kit Campbell Associates

Open Space, Sport and Recreation Consultants
Chuckie Pend

24A Morrison Street

Edinburgh EH3 8B)J

21 April 2008

Kit Campbell Associates, Edinburgh

Report on Draft Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision SPD Consultation

27 of 27

requirement is specified in the guidance notes
relating to the validation checklist which are
required to accompany the new national
standard planning application forms which
become statutory on 6th April 2008.



Vale of White Horse District Council

May 2008

Adopted Supplementary Planning Document
Open Space, Sport and Recreation
Future Provision

Contents

Introduction
The Scope and Purpose of this Supplementary Planning Document
Status of this SPD
Terminology
The Council’s Vision
Typology of Provision
Large Scale and Cross-boundary Developments

Assessing the Impact of Proposed Developments
Introduction
Pre-application Discussions
Standards of Provision
Application of Provision Standards
Line of Thinking for Development Control Purposes
Development Thresholds
Types of Housing Development

Types of residential development to which the provision standards will apply.

The Use of Planning Conditions
Introduction
The Purpose of Conditions

Contributions Relating to Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision

Appendix 2

)
[<Y]
Q
NN NN S Ul L1 AW WW m

12

14
14
14
14

Meeting the Council’s Requirements in Relation to Management and Maintenance 15

Large and Phased Developments - payment of commuted sums
Indexation
Sustainable Urban Drainage Schemes (SUDS)

Planning Agreements
Introduction
The National Justification for Planning Agreements
The Need for Planning Agreements
The Scope of Planning Agreements
The Nature of Planning Agreements

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Spop

and
dag

Recrgatjon Future Provision
e 4y

16
16
16

18
18
18
18
19
19



The Calculation of Developer Contributions and Commuted Sums
Developer Contribution’s

Maintenance Payments

Pooled Contributions

Large and Phased Developments

Large and Phased Developments — payment of contributions
Indexation

The Viability of Developments

On-site or Off-site Provision?

Standard Planning Agreement / Unilateral Undertaking

Appendix A: Provision Standards

Vale of White Horse District Council
Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, @ort and lzgieation Future Provision

age

20
21
22
22
22
22
23
23
24
24



Introduction
The Scope and Purpose of this Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)

1.0 The Vale of White Horse District Council welcomes well designed, sustainable
developments that accord with its adopted planning policies and will enhance the
District as a place to live, work and visit. Networks of high quality, accessible open
space, sport and recreation facilities are critical if this aim is to be met. The purpose
of this Supplementary Planning Document is to provide guidance to those preparing
planning applications for one or more houses as to what the Council will be seeking
to mitigate the impact of their development on open space, sport and recreation
facilities.

1.1 This SPD is in three sections:-

e The first deals with assessing the impacts of proposed residential developments
in terms of open space, sport and recreation provision.

e The second explains how the Council intends to use planning conditions relating
to open space, sport and recreation provision.

e The final section sets out the circumstances in which the Council will require
developers to enter into a planning agreement or unilateral undertaking relating
to open space, sport and recreation provision.

Status of this SPD

1.2 This SPD does not stand alone but should be read in conjunction with the Vale of
White Horse Adopted Local Plan 2011 and the Council’s Open Space, Sport and
Recreation Strategy. A background document to the Open Space, Sport and
Recreation Strategy sets out the results of the Council’s assessment of provision
throughout the District undertaken in 2006-07, in accordance with the requirements
set out in Government Planning Policy Guidance (PPG17) Planning for Open Space,
Sport and Recreation. However, neither the Strategy nor its related Background
Document are part of the Council’s Local Development Framework.

1.3 The main policies in the Adopted Development Plan relevant to open space, sport and
recreation provision are:

e Structure Plan Policy G3, /nfrastructure and Service Provision, which states that
proposals will not be permitted unless the relevant planning authority is satisfied
that the necessary infrastructure is available or will be provided

e Local Plan Policies L1 and L4, which seek to protect existing outdoor play space
and allotments but allow development of them for other uses where this will not
exacerbate or create a local deficiency

e Local Plan Policy L2, which protects all urban open space defined on the
proposals map

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Spop Recrgatjon Future Provision 3
&4y

and
dag



e Local Plan Policy L7, which protects local leisure facilities unless there is no
longer a need for the facility or an alternative provision of equal or better quality
is made available

e Local Plan Policy H23, which requires new housing developments of over 15
dwellings or 0.5 ha to provide 15% public open space and requires suitable
arrangements for future management and maintenance of the open space to be
in place.

e Local Plan Policies H15 and H7, which set out a list of spaces and facilities to be
provided in association with the proposed major developments at Didcot and
Grove

e Local Plan PolicyDC8, which aims to ensure an adequate and timely supply of
social and physical infrastructure to meet the needs of the occupiers or users of
new development

1.4 The Council’s forthcoming Local Development Framework will set out that the
Council intends to seek planning obligations for all developments of one or more
dwellings and not only 15 or more as set out in current Local Plan Policy H23.

1.5 An SPD does not have the same status as the Council’s Adopted Local Plan or the
Local Development Framework currently being prepared. However it will be taken
into account as a material consideration by the Council, a Planning Inspector or the
Secretary of State when determining planning applications and appeals.

1.6 This SPD reflects the policy advice given in paragraphs 25 and 26 of Annex B to
Circular 5/2005 Planning Obligations. This requires planning authorities to set out
their policy for the use of planning agreements in their Local Development
Framework, complemented by an SPD setting out more details of how the authority
will assess the level of contributions it will require through planning agreements.

1.7 This SPD was adopted by the District Council at its meeting of the full Council held on
21st May 2008. The Council will monitor its effectiveness and review its content at
regular intervals to ensure that it remains relevant and compliant with Government
advice on the use of planning conditions and obligations and any future reviews of
the Council’s adopted Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision Strategy

Terminology
1.8 For the sake of clarity and consistency, in this SPD:

e Developers’ contributions (or, more simply, contributions) are capital payments
which the Council will use to fund the provision or enhancement of open space,
sport and recreation provision designed to mitigate the impact of proposed
developments

e Commuted management, maintenance and establishment sums (or, more simply,
commuted sums) are payments to the Council which it will use to fund a stream

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, ﬁort and R‘tgeation Future Provision 4

age



of revenue payments over a number of years in order to maintain or establish
new or enhanced spaces or facilities provided by developers which the Council
has agreed to adopt and maintain

Establishment sums are similar to commuted sums but designed to fund the
establishment of spaces or facilities until such time as they become established
or are fit for use. For example, some shrubs or trees in most planting schemes
die within the first 2-3 years and have to be replaced and some sports facilities,
such as bowling greens or cricket wickets, have to be maintained for 1-2 years
before they can be used.

The Council’s Vision

1.9

The Council’s vision for open space, sport and recreation facilities is set out in its
draft strategy and is:

“The Vale’s towns and villages will have a sustainable network of high quality open
spaces and indoor and outdoor sports facilities that everyone will see as being of
fundamental importance to their quality of life and want to use”.

In more detail through the Local Plan and this SPD the Council’s aims in relation to
open space, sport and recreation are:-

To support the implementation of the Council’s Open Space, Sport and Recreation
Strategy

To promote the speedy, transparent and consistent application of the Council’s
provision standards to proposed developments

To ensure that any new or enhanced provision funded by developers is large
enough to be fit for purpose, appropriately sited, well designed, practical to
maintain and sustainable

To minimise the time needed to negotiate planning agreements with developers
by setting out how the Council will calculate and use developers’ contributions

To facilitate and enable desirable developments for which the Council might
otherwise have to refuse planning permission as a result of their impact on local
infrastructure.

Typology of Provision

1.1

This SPD relates to the following forms of provision:

Multi Functional Greenspaces (MFGS)
Amenity greenspaces

Natural greenspaces

Parks and gardens

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Spop

and Recrgagion Future Provision 5
49644



Other Public Spaces

Civic spaces

Green corridors within urban areas (excluding rights of way, which are a County
Council responsibility)

Activity Spaces

Allotments

Formal play

Multi-sport courts

Youth facilities (this relates to physical infrastructure for informal use by young
people, such as skateboard areas and shelters, and does not include County Council
Youth Service provision)

Outdoor Sports Facilities

Artificial turf pitches

Bowling greens

Grass cricket, football and rugby pitches
Tennis courts

Indoor Sports Facilities
Indoor sports halls and swimming pools

Large Scale and Cross-boundary Developments

1.12 For large scale developments the District Council will normally prepare a planning
brief or expect developers to submit a design brief and/or masterplan to ensure
developments are well designed, based on clear and consistent sustainable
principles. This requirement is particularly important in relation to proposals that
cross the local authority boundary, such as at Didcot. In such cases, the masterplan
may suggest an alternative approach that will deliver the Council’s vision but does
not apply the Council’s adopted provision standards in all respects. Once the Council
has approved the design brief or masterplan, it will expect development proposals to
conform to the principles and standards set out in it and therefore may not require
individual developments to conform to all of its adopted provision standards.
However, the Council will reserve the right to require developers to meet its adopted
standards if particular proposals do not conform satisfactorily to the approved design
brief or masterplan.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, ﬁort and lﬁgeation Future Provision 6

age



Assessing the Impact of Proposed Developments

Introduction

2.0

Appendix A sets out the Council’s provision standards for open spaces, sport and
recreation provision. These standards have been arrived at following an audit of
open space, sport and recreation carried out by consultants in 2006-7. The Council
will use these standards to assess the impact of any housing development proposed
within the District on open space, sport and recreation provisions. This section of the
SPD summarises the scope of the standards and explains how the Council will apply
them.

Pre-application Discussions

2.1

2.2

The Council encourages developers to engage in pre-application discussions with
Council Officers in relation to any development proposal that is likely to have an
impact in terms of:

e Increasing the local need for or use of open space, sport and recreation provision;
or

e The quantity, quality and accessibility of open space, sport and recreation
provision within the District; or

e The potential loss of any open space or sport or recreation facility

In the course of pre-application discussions, Council Officers will be able to provide
advice on the Council’s likely requirements for on-site provision, compensatory off-
site provision or the enhancement of existing provision. However, while the Council
will always endeavour to ensure that any such advice is the best possible at the time
of the discussions, it will always reserve the right to amend its requirements in the
light of the circumstances of a submitted planning application. The main reasons for
this are:

e The applicant may change the details of the development proposal

e Other applications or developments in the vicinity of the proposed site may have
an impact on the Council’s and community’s requirements in relation to any
specific development

Standards of Provision

2.3

PPG17, Planning for Open Space, Sport and Recreation, makes clear that deficiencies
in provision can be both qualitative and quantitative. Assessing Needs and
Opportunities: A Companion Guide to PPGI7 also stresses the importance of

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Spop

and Reczaé‘on Future Provision 7
age



accessibility because provision that is inaccessible to potential users is irrelevant to
them, no matter how large or how high quality.

2.4 Accordingly, and in compliance with PPG17, the Council has developed three types of
provision standards for open space, sport and recreation: the standards are set out in
appendix A and include:-

e Quantity standards, which set out the amount of different forms of provision
required per person across the District. The Council will use these standards to
assess the amount of provision likely to be needed by the residents of new
housing developments and therefore the amount it may require developers either
to provide or fund.

e Quality standards, which set out the basic characteristics required of new
provision. Whenever it requires developers to provide new spaces or facilities,
and in all instances where developers offer spaces or facilities to the Council for
adoption, the Council will impose a condition requiring them to comply with
these standards. The Council will be aiming to bring all existing open spaces and
sport and recreation facilities up to these standards. Where existing spaces or
facilities, required to meet community needs, do not accord with these standards
the Council will consider there to be a qualitative deficiency in provision.

e Accessibility standards (or distance thresholds), which set out the walking, cycling
and driving times and distances that the Council regards as acceptable to
potential users of spaces or facilities. The Council will use these standards to
assess the extent to which existing provision may be relevant to the residents of
proposed new housing developments. For practical reasons, the Council has
adopted accessibility standards based on standard walking, cycling and driving
speeds.

2.5 In accordance with PPG17, the Council will require developers:

e To provide or fund additional provision where there are identified quantitative
deficiencies in provision within the appropriate distance thresholds of a proposed
development, or where the development will result in quantitative deficiencies

e To contribute to the enhancement of existing provision when there is an
identified qualitative deficiency in provision within the appropriate distance
thresholds of a proposed development and one effect of the development will be
to increase the demand pressures on these spaces or facilities.

2.6 The Council will use its quantity standards to determine the scale of contributions
required towards new off-site provision or the enhancement of existing off-site
provision. For example, if a particular development proposal requires X sq m of a
specific form of provision, based on the net increase in the on-site population times
the appropriate quantity standard, the Council will require developers to contribute
to the creation or enhancement of X sq of that form of provision. The Council will
determine which of these alternatives it prefers by taking account of the context

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Eort and lﬁ@?eation Future Provision 8

age



within which the development is set, the amount and nature of provision in the
vicinity of the development site and any other material considerations.

Application of Provision Standards

2.7 The diagram overleaf, based on Assessing Needs and Opportunities: A Companion
Guide to PPG17 (ODPM, 2002), sets out how the Council will use its provision
standards to decide whether there will be a need to mitigate the impact of a
proposed development and, if so, the most appropriate approach to adopt

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Spop Recrgagjon Future Provision 9
e48

and
dag



Flow Chart for Development Control Purposes

After the development is complete without additional provision, will there be sufficient open space, sport and recreation provision
within appropriate distance thresholds of the development site to meet the needs of both existing residents and the residents of the
new development, as assessed using the Council’s provision standards?

Does the quality of all existing provision within the
appropriate distance threshold match the quality

standards?

@

If any new provision is required on-site, will it be larger than the
minimum size in the adopted quality standard and cost-effective
to maintain?

The developer will
normally not be required
either to make on-site
provision or contribute to
the provision or
enhancement of off-site
provision

The developer will
normally be required to
contribute to the
enhancement of off-site
provision within
appropriate distance
thresholds in accordance
with the provision
standards. This will
usually require a planning
agreement.

The developer will
normally be required to
make on-site provision
in accordance with the
provision standards. This
will usually be achieved
by a condition attached to
a grant of planning
permission and possibly a
legal agreement relating
to future maintenance.

The developer will
normally be required to
contribute to off-site
provision within
appropriate distance
thresholds in
accordance with the
provision standards.
This will usually require
a planning agreement.

2.8 To forecast the likely impact of developments the Council will assess the amount of
each of the various forms of provision that will be required to meet the needs of
residents generated by the proposed development, within the context of the area in
which the site is set.

2.9 The starting point for the assessment will be the calculation of the on-site
population. For this purpose the Council will use the following occupancy rates:

e Dwellings with 1 bedroom 1.32 Occupants
1.95 Occupants
2.61 Occupants
3.33 Occupants

2.30 Occupants

e Dwellings with 2 bedrooms
e Dwellings with 3 bedrooms
e Dwellings with 4 bedrooms
e Dwellings of unknown size

Note: these figures derive from a survey of new residential developments in Oxfordshire undertaken by the
Demographic and Social Statistics Adviser in the County Council’s Strategic Policy and Economic
Development Unit during 2005. The County Council intends to review the figures from time to time and
the District Council will then amend the above occupancy levels as appropriate.

2.10 |If the proposed development site includes existing temporary or permanent dwellings
that have been occupied with in one year before the date of receipt of the planning
application, the Council will use the anticipated net change in the number of
residents. For example, if a proposed development consists of twelve 1 bedroom
flats on the site of a 4 bedroom house which will be demolished the Council will
assess the net change in the on-site population as follows:

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, ﬁort and ﬁgeation Future Provision 10

age




e 12 dwellings @ 1.32 people = 15.84 people
e Less

e 1 dwelling @ 3.33 people = -3.33 people
e Net increase 12.51 people

Development Thresholds

2.11 Where there is an identified qualitative or quantitative deficiency in provision, the
Council will seek contributions from any developments resulting in a net increase of
one or more dwellings.

Types of Housing Development

2.12 The residents of different types of dwellings are likely to have different needs in
terms of open space, sport and recreation provision. For example, sheltered housing
will not increase the local demand for football pitches but will very often require on-
site amenity space for the use of residents even if there is existing provision nearby.
The table overleaf sets out the forms of provision the Council considers will be
required for different types of residential development. This means that it will not
always be appropriate for the Council to require developers to make or fund new or
enhanced provision for all those facilities for which it has a provision standard.

Vale of White Horse District Council
Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Spopand Recsﬁon Future Provision 11

age



|G abed

Types of residential development to which the provision standards will apply.

Other
public Activity Spaces Outdoor Sports
spaces Facilities
Type of development < " g
2 o =]
© v ] n 6 c " =
c v w o > v © = [} H e ]
298 9 he! £ < £ A v < 5 &
C Z| = £ @ o 3 © | o 2 9 n
[ VQ; Q o £ > O () S '™ v =
S v O = = o g =2 " =
« £ [®] ° = = o] = (A = =4
] = c o o = c = = 0 c Q
=8l |8 |< |z |2 |8 |8 |2 |&|5|¢
S o U bt ] 9 ) S =
= O € ol E @ ~ S
o ;: he]
w £
Open market dwellings 4 v v v v v v v v v v All open market dwellings will generate demand for access to all forms of
provision
Affordable housing v v v v v v v v v v Y| Al affordable housing will generate demand for access to all forms of provision
Accommodation for active | v v X | X X v X v v “Active elderly residents” are able to live independent lives without personal
elderly people assistance. They are unlikely to have live-in children but may take part in some
sports activities such as tennis and bowls.
Special housing for less | X X X X X X X X X X Residents of special housing requiring at least some degree of personal care will
active elderly people not take part in active pursuits but should increase the demand for parks and
similar open spaces.
Hostels and special needs | v | X v X X X X X X Residents with special needs may require access to sports facilities but will
housing certainly be able to benefit from parks and other amenity open spaces.
One for one replacement X X X X X X X X X X X A replacement dwelling will only have a marginal impact on the need of
dwellings community facilities.
Extensions to dwellings X X X X X X X X X X X Extensions are likely at most to have only a marginal impact on the need for
Vale of White Horse District Council
Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation Future Provision 12




2G abed

community infrastructure.

Notes:
v Provision normally required
X Provision not normally required

Multi-functional greenspace: amenity greenspaces, natural greenspaces and parks and gardens

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation Future Provision

13




The Use of Planning Conditions
Introduction

3.0 When the Council grants planning permission for a proposed development it may do
so subject to a number of conditions. This section of the SPD therefore provides an
overview of the conditions that the Council may impose in relation to open space,
sport and recreation provision, together with how it will assess commuted
maintenance sums in instances where developers offer on-site provision, or other
provision intended primarily for the benefit of the occupants of a proposed
development, for adoption by the Council or other appropriate agreed body such as
one of the District’s town or parish councils. If the Council or another body is to
adopt open space, sport or recreation facilities any commuted maintenance payment
will be subject to a legal agreement.

The Purpose of Conditions

3.1 The purpose of conditions is to enable development proposals to proceed in cases
where they would otherwise be unacceptable. In all cases, the Council will ensure
that each condition is:-

e Necessary and therefore the development should not be permitted without the
condition

e Relevant to land use planning objectives

e Relevant to the proposed development and justified by its nature or impact on its
surroundings

e Clear and enforceable

e Reasonable in all other aspects

Contributions Relating to Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision

3.2 Open space, sport and recreation facilities must be managed and maintained
effectively if they are not to deteriorate and have a negative impact on local amenity.
Accordingly, in all instances where the Council requires developers to make on-site
greenspace, sport or recreation provision, or when they do so voluntarily, it will
require them to put in place measures for their management and maintenance in
perpetuity. The Council’s standard condition for this purpose is:-

“Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a scheme for the
future maintenance and layout of the open space areas as shown on the approved
drawings shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the District Planning
Authority. The areas thereafter shall be permanently maintained in accordance with
the approved scheme”.

Reason. In the interests of visual and residential amenity.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Eort and Igtgeation Future Provision 14

age



Meeting the Council’s Requirements in Relation to Management and Maintenance

3.3 In principle, the Council regards either of the following approaches as acceptable
means of satisfying the requirement to secure the ongoing maintenance of open space,
sport and recreation facilities:

e The handing over of the spaces or facilities to the District Council or other
appropriate agreed body (such as the relevant town or parish council) for
adoption, plus an appropriate commuted maintenance sum, on the basis of a
legal agreement.

e The incorporation of a clause in the title deeds for the properties in the
development:

a) Requiring the owners to contribute to the upkeep of the common areas of the
development, including any on-site or other open space or sports and
recreation provision intended predominantly for their use, and form a
residents association to manage, or appoint a factor to manage, the necessary
maintenance works to an agreed standard, which shall be not lower than the
Council’s adopted quality standard.

b) Granting the Council “Step-in” rights which will allow it to undertake the
maintenance itself in the event that, in its sole judgement, the arrangements
made in accordance with sub-paragraph (a) prove ineffective and recover the
costs of doing so, including all legal and administrative costs, from the
residents or occupants of the development on a suitable fair basis.

Note: this approach is designed to be compatible with paragraph B18 of DCLG Circular 5/2005,Planning
Obligations, which indicates that Councils can require developers to make arrangements for the
management and maintenance in perpetuity of spaces and facilities intended predominantly for the
residents or users of a proposed development

3.4 The Council will be willing to consider other approaches put forward by developers
on a case by case basis, but will always require to be satisfied that whatever detailed
arrangements the developer may propose will be effective.

3.5 The Council or other agreed appropriate body (such as the relevant town or parish
council) may be willing to adopt and subsequently manage and maintain on-site
provision made by developers only if:

e The provision meets the appropriate quality standard(s) in all respects at the time
of adoption; and

e The developer provides a commuted maintenance sum on or before the date of
adoption of the space or facilities to the agency in whom the land is to be vested,
sufficient to fund the management and maintenance for a period of 20 vyears;
and

e The developer pays all of the legal costs relating to the transfer of the land or
facilities of the body in whom the land is to be vested.

3.6 The Council will publish on its website, and revise annually with effect from 1 April in
each year, a statement of the standard commuted maintenance sums it will require
Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Spopand Recsﬂon Future Provision 15

age



for different forms of provision. It will base them on anticipated annual maintenance
costs, using costs provided by its grounds maintenance contractor, including as
many of the following as may be appropriate:

e An establishment cost, designed to fund the replacement of any plants or trees
which may die within an initial establishment period of 5 years

e All maintenance materials required over 20 years

e An appropriate proportion of equipment costs, taking into account the
anticipated lifespan of maintenance equipment

e A 10% on-cost, to cover the management of maintenance operations

3.7 The Council will calculate commuted sums in the form of the net present value (NPV)
of the anticipated stream of establishment or maintenance costs over a 20 year
period, based on:-

e Current costs provided by its grounds maintenance contractor
e A predicted annual increase for inflation and other costs
e A discount rate of 4%.

Large and Phased Developments - Payment of Commuted Sums

3.9 If the Council or another appropriate agreed body (such as the relevant town or
parish council) is to adopt on-site or other spaces or facilities, it is likely that they
will be completed and ready for handover and adoption at different times during the
construction of large or phased developments. When this will be the case, the
Council is willing in principle to allow the payment of commuted sums on a phased
basis which matches the points at which it or the other appropriate body adopts the
spaces or facilities. However, this will always be conditional upon:

e The spaces or facilities being in a fully adoptable condition in all respects

e Any related commuted sums being index-linked from the date of the grant of
planning permission to the date of payment

e The dates or other trigger point at which spaces or facilities are to be adopted
being agreed in writing before the start of the development on site

Indexation

3.10 There are several published cost indices that the Council could use when indexing
Contributions or commuted sums. However the indices that the Council will normally
use are: for construction works, the Department of Trade & Industry Tender Price
Index of Public Sector Non Housing (PUBSEC) smoothed all-in-index: for commuted
sums, the index of Retail Price.

Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS)
Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, ﬁort and Iggeation Future Provision 16

age



3.11 The Council encourages developers to incorporate proposals for sustainable urban
drainage schemes in their developments whenever possible and to ensure that the
management and maintenance of SUDS features is seen as part of the overall
management regime for a site. However, the Council does not adopt any open space
designed for drainage purposes as part of a sustainable urban drainage systems
(SUDS).

Vale of White Horse District Council
Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Spopand Recs%‘on Future Provision 17

age



Planning Agreements

Introduction

4.0

Wherever possible and in accordance with Government advice, the Council will seek
to use planning conditions, however there will be many instances where the barriers
to granting planning permission cannot be resolved by the use of conditions. In
these instances the Council will seek to negotiate a planning agreement with the
developers.

The National Justification for Planning Agreements

4.1

Government has made it clear in various Planning Policy Guidelines (PPG’s) and
Planning Policy Statements (PPS’s) that the community should not be disadvantaged
by new development. Accordingly, it is the Government’s view that it is reasonable
for planning authorities to expect developers to contribute to the cost of meeting
local needs for community facilities and infrastructure which arise from their
developments. Development creates a need for additional or enhanced
infrastructure, giving rise to a “planning obligation” on the developer to provide or
fund whatever measures may be required to mitigate (ie meet) those needs. The
legislative basis for this is set out in Section 106 of the Town & Country Planning Act
1990, as substituted by Section 12(l) of the Planning & Compensation Act 1991. This
allows for obligations to be discharged either through a planning agreement
negotiated between the developer and local authority or a unilateral undertaking,
offered by a developer. The difference between them is simple. In a planning
agreement, the developer and/or land owner(s) and the relevant local authority, both
“covenant” (a legal term which effectively means “undertake” or “promise”) to do
certain things. For example, the developer might covenant to pay an amount of
money (a “contribution”) to the local authority, which in turn enters into a “reciprocal
covenant” to use that money for the purpose or in the way set out in the agreement.
Unilateral undertakings, on the other hand, are effectively one-sided planning
agreements: the developer/land owner covenants to do something that will make the
development acceptable to the local authority (for example, to pay a contribution of
£X to the local authority for it to use to enhance local greenspace), but the local
authority does not enter into any reciprocal covenants. In this context, the tem “local
authority” can have a wide meaning; it frequently includes the District Council, as the
local planning authority, and the County Council in several distinct roles, for example
as the Highways Authority, the Education Authority and the Library Authority.

The Need for Planning Agreements

4.2

Paragraph 33 of PPG17 states that:

“Local authorities will be justified in seeking planning obligations where the quantity
or quality of provision is inadequate or under threat, or where new development
increases local needs.”

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, ﬁort and Ig@?eation Future Provision 18

age



4.3

4.4

4.5

In most instances, the need for a planning agreement will arise because:

e The development will result in additional pressures on existing open spaces,
sport and recreation facilities which cannot reasonably be sustained

e It would not be realistic, or sensible in land use terms, for the Council to require
the developer to mitigate these pressures on land in the developer’s ownership

In these circumstances, if there is not a commensurate increase or improvement in
the amount, quality or capacity of provision, the result will be a “planning loss” to the
local community: for example, there will be more demand for local football pitches
than can realistically be accommodated. The Council may seek agreements in order:

e To require the developer to fund compensatory provision; or

e [To require the developer to provide a financial contribution which it will use off-
site to mitigate the impacts of the development

e [To seek contributions to future maintenance of on-site provision.

This section of the SPD sets out the circumstances under which the Council will be
seeking a planning obligation to secure contributions or compensatory provision of
open space, sport and recreational facilities. It explains how the Council will assess
the possible need for and scale of those contributions and how it will use them. It
therefore has two main purposes:

e To provide clarity and transparency for developers so that they are aware of the
possible need for a planning agreement and related financial contributions early
in the development process

e To facilitate a consistent approach to the securing of planning agreements and
the use of contributions throughout the District.

The Scope of Planning Agreements

4.6

The Council may seek a planning agreement relating to the provision of any type of
open space or sport and recreation facility for which it has a provision standard.
(These standards are set out in Appendix A).

The Nature of Planning Agreements

4.7

4.8

Planning agreements can take many forms. Circular 05/2005 Planning Obligations
sets out three main purposes for them:

e To prescribe the nature of a development in order to achieve planning objectives
e To mitigate the impact of a development
e To compensate for loss or damage caused by a development

The Council will require planning obligations to mitigate the impact of a development
or compensate for provision of open space, sport and recreation facilities which will
be damaged or lost as a result of the proposed development.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Spopand Recs@on Future Provision 19

age



4.9 Circular 5/2005 re-affirms the five policy tests for the reasonableness of a planning
agreement. The Council interprets these policy tests as follows:

e The proposed agreement must be necessary: the proposed development will
increase the need for greenspace or sport and recreation provision in an area
where as a result of the development there will be a quantitative deficiency or
result in additional demand pressures on existing spaces or provision in an area
where there is a qualitative deficiency and therefore necessitates their
enhancement

e The proposed mitigation must be relevant to planning: the Council will seek
contributions only for purposes which relate to the use or development of land

e The proposed mitigation must be directly related to the proposed development: it
is not necessary, and may be impractical, to attempt to mitigate all of the impacts
of a proposed development in the immediate vicinity of the site. However, the
additional demands arising from the development must be met within a
reasonable distance of it. This “reasonable distance” will vary with the nature of
the infrastructure and is set out in the Council’s standards in an Appendix to this
SPD. The reasonable distance will be fairly limited for facilities such as play areas
for young children but longer for facilities such as artificial turf pitches which
serve a significant catchment area. PPG17 recommends the use of distance
thresholds and the Council has adopted this approach and will use it to determine
how far a proposed mitigation is “directly related” to a development.

e The proposed mitigation must be fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind
to the proposed development: the Council will not ask developers to fund a
greater amount of infrastructure than needed to accommodate the additional
pressures created by their development

e The proposed agreement must be reasonable in all other respects: in broad
terms, the key test the Council will apply is whether the requirement for an
agreement is so directly related to the regulation of the proposed development
that it should not be permitted without it.

4.10 It follows that the Council will not seek contributions to reduce any infrastructure
deficiency which existed at the time a development was first proposed to a greater
extent than justified by the scale and nature of the proposed development. However
it may seek contributions to prevent any such deficiencies becoming more as a direct
result of the proposed development.

4.11 Planning permission must never be bought or sold. Accordingly, the Council will not
grant permission for an unacceptable development because the developer has
offered to provide or fund unnecessary or unrelated benefits through a unilateral
undertaking. However the Council will refuse planning permission for an otherwise
acceptable development if the developer is unwilling or unable to contribute to
infrastructure improvements needed as a result of their development.

The Calculation of Developer Contributions and Commuted Sums

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Eort and Iggeation Future Provision 20

age



4.12 The Council will use a spreadsheet model to calculate developer contributions and
commuted sums. The Model:

e Calculates the likely on-site population of the proposed development and the net
increase or decrease in the local population

e Calculates whether the quantity of existing provision within the relevant distance
thresholds before and after the proposed development meets the adopted
quantity provision standards

e Indicates whether there is a surplus or deficiency of each form of provision before
and after the proposed development

e Calculates the amount of on-site provision and commuted maintenance sum
needed to meet the needs of the on-site population, whether there is a deficiency
after the development, and compares this with the minimum size element of the
provision standard

e Calculates the amount of off-site provision and related commuted payment
needed to meet the net increase in population arising from the development

e Identifies whether any of the existing provision within the appropriate distance
threshold of the proposed development site requires enhancement and, if so,
calculates the developer’s contribution towards this enhancement, based on the
net increase in local population

4.13 The Model therefore provides clear answers to the questions in the line of thinking
above. The Model, includes:

e The amount of each form of on-site provision to be made by the developer, if any
e The required commuted maintenance sums required for on-site provision, if any
e Contributions required to new off-site provision, if any

e Contributions required to enhanced off-site provision, if any

4.14 The Model calculates a “menu” of the possible permutations of these requirements.
The Council will then use its judgement to select the most appropriate way of
mitigating the impact of a proposed development from this “menu”, including the
form(s) of provision it may require developers to provide or fund. The Council will
make the model available to developers on its website www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk so

that it can be used to assess the requirements the Council may have in relation to a
proposed development at an early stage in the development process.

Developer Contributions

4.15 When calculating developer contributions, the Council will include all of the costs the
Council is likely to incur. These costs will include:

e Land cost, if appropriate

e Construction cost

e Design team fees and expenses

e Essential furniture and/or equipment

e Legal costs, including those incurred in drawing up the agreement

Vale of White Horse District Council
Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Spopand Recgﬁon Future Provision 21

age



e A 15% on-cost, to cover monitoring, project procurement and management by
the Council
e VAT, if irrecoverable

Maintenance Payments

4.16 Circular 05/2005 enables planning authorities to use planning agreements to secure
the appropriate long term management and maintenance of spaces or facilities in two
sets of circumstances:

e Where spaces or facilities are provided primarily for the benefit of the residents or
users of a development: the Council will require developers to make
arrangements for their effective management and maintenance in perpetuity.
This approach complies with paragraph 18 of Annex B to Circular 05/2005.

e Where spaces or facilities are intended for wider public use: the Council will seek
an establishment payment designed to fund management and maintenance which
reflects “the time lag between the provision of the new facility and its inclusion in
public sector funding streams, or its ability to recover its own costs”. This
approach complies with paragraph 19 of Annex B to Circular 05/2005.

Pooled Contributions

4.17 Most planning obligations relating to greenspace, sport and recreation provision will
require developers to provide contributions which the Council will subsequently
invest in new or enhanced off-site provision. In order to maximise the impact and
benefits of such investment, the Council may pool contributions from two or more
developments in the same area, using its accessibility standards as its means of
defining “the same area”.

4,18 Across the District many open spaces, sport and recreation facilities are owned and
managed by the Town and Parish Councils, and the District Council will collect
contributions through the planning process on their behalf or for any other agreed
appropriate body.

4.19 The contributions received from a development will not always be sufficient fully to
fund the required enhancements of existing spaces or facilities. In these
circumstances the District Council will seek to aggregate contributions from other
developments in the same area so that the required enhancements are affordable. If
this is unlikely to be achievable within an acceptable timescale, the Council will seek
to fund the balance of costs from other sources such as grant aid, other external
funding, from its own resources or, for sites that it does not own, the site owner.

Large and Phased Developments

4.20 Large developments may require several planning applications because they are to be
phased or undertaken by more than one developer. In these cases, the Council will

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Eort and I%r.[eation Future Provision 22

age



seek to ensure that contributions to infrastructure are apportioned as fairly as
possible between the various phases and or developers.

Large and Phased Developments - Payment of Contributions

4.21

The need for infrastructure provision or enhancements funded by developer
contributions arises as developments are built out and the new dwellings occupied.
This means that it would be unreasonable to require all contributions to be paid to
the Council before commencement of large or phased developments on site. For
developments of over 100 dwellings, or where the construction of a development is
to be separated into clearly identified phases, the Council will be willing in principle
to negotiate arrangements in the planning agreement to allow the payment of
contributions in a way that matches the rate at which the need for the infrastructure
will arise. It will normally do this by agreeing suitable and clearly identified trigger
points, for example before the start of works on site and when 33% and 67% of the
dwellings are complete. These percentages are purely illustrative and other triggers
may be appropriate in relation to specific developments. The Council may also
require the developer to provide a bond to guarantee payment of all phased
contributions. This arrangement will comply with paragraph B17 of DCLG Circular
5/20005, Planning Obligations.

Indexation

4.22

Where contributions are to be phased the Council will require them to be index-
linked from the date of the grant of planning permission to the date of payment.
There are several published cost indices that the Council could use when indexing
contributions. However, it will normally use is the Department of Trade and Industry
Tender Price Index of Public Sector Non-Housing (PUBSEC) Smoothed All-in Index

The Viability of Developments

4.23

The District Council is well aware that there is potentially a long list of forms of
community infrastructure provision towards which it and the County Council will wish
to seek contributions. In some instances, there may be a need for the District
Council to negotiate with developers to ensure that the contributions requested do
not destroy the viability of a desirable proposed development. However, it will be
very difficult for the Council to do this in a way that is fair to both the developer and
the local community unless developers are open with the Council about the land and
construction costs of their developments and the anticipated sales receipts.
Accordingly, if a developer believes that the level of contributions sought by the
Council will destroy the viability of a proposed development the onus will be on the
developer to prove that this is the case. The Council will if necessary employ an
independent third party to assess the case. The Council will be happy to give a
written guarantee of confidentiality in relation to information on the viability of
proposed developments and to minimise the number of officials who are party to the
information. The County Council will give a similar undertaking if it is party to the

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Schsand Recgﬁon Future Provision 23

age



viability information as a result of having a significant infrastructure requirement that
the developer regards as unaffordable.

On-site or Off-site Provision?

4.24 Once the need for additional or enhanced infrastructure has been established, the
flow chart above will act as a guide as to whether the Council should require on-site
or off-site provision. In most instances the need for the best and most sustainable
long term use of land will dictate that one or the other is preferable.

4.25 The Council is aware that, in some cases there can be more benefits to be gained
from enhancing existing off-site provision than in making additional on-site
provision, provided that there is not a serious shortfall in the quantity of provision,
within the appropriate distance thresholds of the development. In these
circumstances development can help to deliver important benefits for existing
communities and make proposals more acceptable to them as a result. This will
clearly benefit developers as well as local communities. Enhanced off-site provision
can also minimise the amount of additional land needed for open space, sport and
recreation provision; make better use of existing facilities; make the best use of land;
minimise the long term revenue costs associated with community infrastructure and
therefore enhance financial sustainability; and help the Council and developers
achieve acceptable residential densities.

4.26 This said, however, the Council’s general presumption will be that:

e New provision required as a result of proposed developments should normally be
on-site. However, if the amount of provision justified by the application of the
appropriate quantity standard is below the minimum size thresholds set out in
the Council’s adopted quality standard, its preference will be for a contribution to
off-site provision.

e For off-site provision, where either the enhancement of existing provision or new
provision is justified, the Council’s preference will normally be the former. This
should also result in lower contributions from developers because upgrading or
enhancing existing provision will often have lower capital costs than new
provision and help to make the best use of land by allowing and supporting
higher densities of development.

4.27 In cases where the Council requires developers to contribute to the enhancement of
existing spaces or facilities rather than make or fund new provision, the need for
speedy determination of planning applications will not allow the development of
costed design proposals. Accordingly the Council will assess the unit cost of
enhancing existing provision as three quarters (75%) of the cost of new provision of
the same kind, excluding land cost.

Standard Planning Agreement/Unilateral Undertaking

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Eort and I%tgeation Future Provision 24

age



4.28

In order to aid transparency, reduce legal costs and speed up their preparation, the
Council has prepared a standard form of draft planning agreement and unilateral
undertaking relating to greenspace, sport and recreation provision. Copies are
available from the Council’s Offices or can be downloaded from its website
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk. In addition, and in order to help the Council determine
planning applications as quickly as possible, it will require draft heads of terms for a
planning agreement or unilateral undertaking alongside any planning application for
developments of 10 or more dwellings before it will validate the application. This
new requirement is specified in the guidance notes relating to the Validation
Checklists which are required to accompany the new national standard planning
application forms which became statutory on 6th April 2008.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Spopand Recgﬂon Future Provision 25

age



Introduction

Vale of White Horse District Council

Appendix 2A: Provision Standards

This appendix summarises the accessibility, quantity and
quality provision standards the Council requires developers to
follow and that it will use when assessing application for
planning permission. Its Development Control Model is based
primarily on the accessibility and quantity standards set out
below.

The quality standards set out below are no less important but
the extent to which development proposals conform to them
is more a matter of judgement in the light of specific
development proposals. However, they set out the Council’s
requirements as a guide for developers on the quality of
provision the Council will expect them either to provide or
fund. The Council will take them into account when
appraising planning applications that incorporate open space
or sport and recreation provision. In this context, quality
standards are a requirement, although they must obviously be
applied in a way which is reasonable given the specific
circumstances of a proposed development.

The forms of open space, sport and recreation provision for
which the Council has adopted provision standards are:

Multi-functional Greenspaces (MFGS)
¢ Amenity greenspaces

e Natural greenspaces

e Parks and gardens

Other public spaces
e Green corridors
o Civic spaces

Activity Spaces

¢ Allotments

e Formal play provision
e Multi-sport courts

e Youth Facilities

Outdoor Sports Facilities
o Artificial turf pitches
e Bowling greens

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 65



General Requirements

Vale of White Horse District Council

e Grass cricket, football and rugby pitches
e Tennis Courts

Indoor facilities
e Indoor sports halls and swimming pools

Accessibility Standards/Distance Thresholds

The Council’s accessibility standards are expressed as
distance thresholds: the maximum time and distance that
potential users should have to travel. Different forms of
provision can have any combination of walking, cycling and
driving thresholds. Where a particular form of provision has
more than one type of threshold, the Council will normally
apply the most onerous in the urban areas of the District and
the least onerous in the rural areas. However, in the urban
areas if it is not practicable to have the required provision
within the most onerous threshold - for example because the
land that would be required is not available - it will apply the
next most onerous.

The following requirements for design objectives, design
principles, accessibility and management and maintenance are
common to all spaces and therefore are set out at the start of
the standards rather than repeated for each different form of
provision. There are also some additional requirements under
the headings for specific types of space which are set out in
the appropriate sections below.

Design Objectives

Design quality is fundamental to ensuring that spaces are fit
for purpose, attractive to potential users and easy to maintain.
All greenspaces should therefore be designed by experienced
landscape architects working to the following design
objectives:

e Character: each space should have its own specific identify
which responds to the character of the area in which it is
set and makes good use of the existing topography and
landscape or built features and habitats

e Continuity and enclosure: there should be a clear
distinction between public and private spaces

e Quality of the public realm: spaces should be attractive,

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 66



Vale of White Horse District Council

safe, uncluttered and designed in such a way as to be
attractive and usable by everyone. There should also be
views into and out of spaces, for example to appropriate
landmarks.

Ease of movement: it should be easy to get to and move
through spaces and individual public spaces should be
linked with one another as much as possible and designers
should not propose fragmented greenspace provision if it
is avoidable. In residential areas, people should generally
have priority over vehicles.

Legibility and clear routes: the routes through spaces
should be clear, with landmarks or directional signs at
appropriate locations

Adaptability: spaces should be able to change over time to
meet evolving local needs

Diversity: spaces should offer variety and choice to
potential users

Sustainability: the design and management of greenspaces
should actively promote environmental sustainability and
nature conservation, for example by protecting, restoring
or creating new habitats, helping to shelter buildings to
minimise the cooling effects of wind, minimising the
impact of atmospheric pollution or heavy rainfall and
providing shade. As much as possible, greenspaces
should be linked to water courses so as to create wildlife
corridors (which can include private gardens or other non-
public spaces) and attractive walking/cycling routes.
Where appropriate, new developments should include
sustainable urban drainage.

Personal safety: all spaces must appear safe and therefore
not include areas where someone could be trapped or
potential attackers could hide. Ideally, spaces in
residential areas should be within sight of nearby roads or
paths and residents in nearby properties. In addition there
must be appropriate safety measures adjacent to areas of
water which might be dangerous (eg notices regarding
depths, life buoys) and adequate lighting for paths that
may be used at night.

Appropriate facilities: most spaces should have at least
seats and appropriately signed litter and “pooper” bins.
Bins must be bird, squirrel and rat proof and located at
points where they can easily be accessed from the road
system.

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 67



Vale of White Horse District Council

General Design Principles

Green spaces should be linked to local pedestrian and
cycle path systems wherever possible, including rights of
way, bridlepaths and quiet lanes (note: rights of way and
other means of access to the countryside are a County
Council function and any proposed changes to existing
path systems in the countryside must be agreed with it).
New housing development could follow “home zone”
principles in that they should be designed as
predominantly pedestrian environments into which
vehicles can be admitted. This requires much more than
simple traffic calming measures such as sleeping
policemen.

The whole of the outdoor environment should be safe but
visually stimulating for both children and adults and offer
opportunities for them to play in imaginative ways, both
close to home and in any nearby wooded or other
greenspaces which can be accessed without crossing a
major road. The green network and related play provision
must not be allocated to “left-over areas” or parts of sites
unsuitable for building but designed in from the start and
link to likely pedestrian desire lines.

Areas in which children are likely to play should be unique
and designed to offer a varied, interesting and physically
challenging environment, accessible to everyone, which
offers opportunities for running, jumping, climbing,
balancing, building or creating, social interaction and
sitting quietly.

The design of play provision should derive from and
reinforce the character and levels of the site and
incorporate any natural features there may be on it such as
rock outcrops or water courses. This will also help to
encourage and facilitate use by children of all ages.

Play provision should be designed generally to encourage
children to explore their home environment and so
incorporate hiding and “secret” places and link to nearby
parts of the green network, especially woodland and other
natural areas.

Greenspaces should stimulate the senses of sight, sound,
touch and smell and offer opportunities for children to
manipulate materials. Accordingly they should incorporate
variations in level and a range of materials of different
kinds, textures and colours, such as timber, sand, rocks,

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 68



dead trees and other natural materials and incorporate
trees, shrubs and grass.

e Boundary fencing, gates, posts etc should be fit for
purpose and well maintained

e Surfaces should be fit for purpose (inclusive of markings)
and well maintained

e Management regime to suit particular landscape/habitat
type eg differential mowing may be suitable to promote
wildlife interests; not less than 1 m close mown edges to
paths

e All paths should be kept clear of overhanging branches
which cyclists or other users might hit

e All built and other facilities should be in clean, safe and
usable condition

Mandatory Requirements

The following requirements are mandatory and not open to
negotiation:

e All cycle paths must comply with the appropriate
Oxfordshire County Council requirements for paths of
adoptable standard

e Where appropriate all paths must be accessible to people
with disabilities

e All lighting must minimise upward light spill and light
pollution

e All street furniture and fixed play equipment must be
approved by the Council’s where the facility is to be
adopted by the District Council

e All signs must comply with the Council’s guidelines on
signage

e Trees and shrubs must be selected and specified to
provide year-round colour and interest

Accessibility

Accessibility has two key components: making it easy for
potential users to get to spaces and making it easy to use
them. Accordingly it is concerned with all potential users and
not just those who are disabled in some way.

The Disability Discrimination Act 1995 and PPG17 both
promote the design of inclusive public spaces and

Vale of White Horse District Council 5
Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 69



Vale of White Horse District Council

environments that everyone can use. Since October 2004
service providers have been required to take reasonable steps
to ensure that people with disabilities are able to use premises
and spaces without unnecessary constraints. There is no clear
definition of “reasonable” in this context, but it seems that
there is no requirement to make all spaces accessible to
people with disabilities all of the time. A useful policy is that
greenspaces should be usable by all people to the greatest
extent possible without the need for adaptation or specialised
design.

In greenspaces, the key requirements are:

e Spaces and publicly accessible buildings or facilities within
them should be fully accessible to people with disabilities

e On-site spaces should not generally be on the perimeter
of sites but the focus of the development; in residential
areas, no dwellings should “turn their back” on adjacent
greenspaces.

e Adequate car parking (if required) should be either on site
or close to the entrances

e Spaces should be traversed by a network of hard surfaced
paths, where appropriate, which will shed water and are
suitable for wheelchairs and baby buggies; maximum
slope not more than 1:12 and then only for short
distances; otherwise not more than 1:24. Paths must also
be wide enough for two wheelchairs to pass and broadly
follow desire lines to link the entrances to the space with
points of interest either within the space or close to it
(note: on some sites, such as playing fields and sports
pitches, it will be necessary not to compromise the main
use of the site). In some locations, it may be necessary to
provide tactile clues to alert people with limited vision to
trip hazards or changes in level.

e Clear and uncomplicated written information, signage and
way-marking, with good colour contrast and simple
lettering in an appropriate point size. Written information
should include directions to points of interest or local
community facilities (eg schools, shops, sports facilities)
with approximate walking times and signs requiring dogs
to be kept under control and fouling disposed of to
“pooper” bins

e Easy to use latches and gates, if required

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 70



MFGS: Amenity Greenspace

Vale of White Horse District Council

Wherever possible, greenspace designers should consult local
disabled groups over the design of spaces and facilities.

Management and Maintenance

A superbly designed but badly managed or maintained space
is probably of less value to a local community than a poorly
designed but superbly managed and maintained one. The key
management and maintenance requirements are that:

Area should be kept clean with litter bins emptied
regularly and no dangerous litter such as broken glass left
unattended

There should be at most only limited evidence of
vandalism or graffiti coupled with rapid and effective
removal

There should be very little or no evidence of dog fouling,
with pooper bins” available at various points, plus notices
relating to the avoidance of dog fouling. Pooper bins must
also be clearly identifiable and separate from litter bins -
for example, a different colour and clearly marked.

There should be no or very little evidence of flytipping and
rapid, effective removal of tipped material

All paths should be kept clear of debris with surfaces in
good condition and repaired

All facilities should be in clean, safe and usable condition
Lighting should be adequately maintained and working
Grounds maintenance standards should be consistently
high and demonstrate clearly that spaces are well
maintained

Grassed areas to have a low preponderance of broad
leaved weeds; they must be cut to an even length and if
clippings are left in place after cutting they must be short
so as not to have a detrimental impact on the appearance
of the area

Horticultural areas and flower/shrub beds weed free and
ideally mulched

Flowering plants dead headed and pruned as necessary
Woodland areas maintained in accordance with an
approved management plan

Definition

Informal greenspaces in and around housing areas and

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 71



Vale of White Horse District Council

village greens

Accessibility Standard

e Walking 5 minutes/300 m

Quantity Standard

There are no specific quantity standards for amenity
greenspace; instead, they are subsumed into general
standards for multi-functional greenspace, covering amenity
greenspaces, natural greenspaces and parks and gardens, of:

e Rural areas of the Vale 6.5 sq m per person
e Urban areas of the Vale 13 sq m per person

For the purposes of this standard, the Council defines the
urban areas of the Vale as Abingdon, Botley (as defined on the
local plan proposals map), Faringdon, Grove and Wantage. It
will determine the most appropriate mix of amenity
greenspace, natural greenspace and parks and gardens in the
context of specific development proposals.

Minimum Size

e 1,000 sgq m (0.1 hectare)

General Characteristics

e part of a network of greenspaces within residential or
other areas which link to major walking and cycling routes
and bus stops

e Located away from sources of potential danger to
unaccompanied children such as roads

e Designed to create a sense of place and provide a setting
for adjoining buildings

e Clear definition between public and semi-private areas for
residents and private spaces (eg domestic gardens)

e Views out of or across the space, ideally to local landmarks

e Designed and constructed in such a way as to ensure that
the space does not become waterlogged after normal
levels of rainfall this may require field drains or field
drains plus soil amelioration

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 72



Planting and biodiversity

e Good balance of mown grassed areas, in varying widths or
sizes (large enough for informal recreation such as
kickabouts or mini-soccer where appropriate) and mixed
indigenous and ornamental species and ages of trees or
shrubs, but with a predominantly open character

e Range of habitat types eg woodland, ponds, grasslands,
hedgerows

e Buffer or shelter planting as necessary

Facilities and Features

e Should incorporate informal provision for children and
young people (eg spaces for a “kickabout”, quiet places to
meet with informal seating and natural play features such
as boulders, logs and hollows)

e Adequate litter bins

e May incorporate public art or heritage features (eg statues)

e Seats, in both sunny and shaded areas

e Adequate safety measures adjacent to potentially
dangerous areas of water (eg rivers, canals)

e Path lighting where appropriate

MFGS: Natural Greenspace Definition

e Publicly accessible natural and semi-natural urban
greenspaces - including woodlands, urban forestry, scrub,
grasslands (eg downlands, commons and meadows)
wetlands, open and running water, wastelands and derelict
open land and rock areas (eg cliffs, quarries and pits)

Accessibility Standard

e Walking 15 minutes/900 m

Quantity Standard

There are no specific quantity standards for natural
greenspace; instead, they are subsumed into general
standards for multi-functional greenspace, covering amenity
greenspaces, natural greenspaces and parks and gardens, of:
e Rural areas of the Vale 6.5 sq m per person

Vale of White Horse District Council 9
Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 73



Vale of White Horse District Council

e Urban areas of the Vale 13 sq m per person

For the purposes of this standard, the Council defines the
urban areas of the Vale as Abingdon, Botley (as defined on the
local plan proposals map), Faringdon, Grove and Wantage. It
will determine the most appropriate mix of amenity
greenspace, natural greenspace and parks and gardens in the
context of specific development proposals.

Minimum Size

e 1,000 sgm(0.1 ha)

General Characteristics

e Naturalistic appearance which incorporates an appropriate
range of wildlife habitats

Accessibility

e Entrances or access points and internal paths linked to
rights of way, bridlepaths, quiet lanes and cycling routes
and water courses to create wildlife corridors and a
network of greenspaces

Planting and Biodiversity

e Good mix of native species and habitats, depending on
site characteristics

e Wildlife protection areas

e Clearings or gaps in tree crowns to allow light penetration
to woodland floor, where appropriate

e Well developed shrub, field and ground layers and wide,
species rich edge, where appropriate

e The promotion of nature conservation within or adjacent
to Oxfordshire County Council’s Conservation Target
Areas

Facilities and Features
e Clear and coherent signage to and throughout the site as
appropriate

e Built heritage structures and natural features conserved
e Interpretation of flora and fauna as appropriate

10

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 74



MFGS: Parks and Gardens

Vale of White Horse District Council

e Litter bins and seats at key points

e Signs requiring dogs to be kept under control and fouling
disposed of to “pooper” bins

e Adequate safety measures adjacent to areas of water (will
depend on size, depth and current, if any)

e “Way marked” routes, where appropriate

Management and Maintenance

¢ Managed primarily for wildlife and nature conservation

Definition

e Urban and country parks and formal gardens

Accessibility Standard

e Walking 15 minutes/900 m
e Cycling 15 minutes/2250 m
e Driving 15 minutes/5625 m

As parks and gardens should be within walking distance of
most potential users, the primary accessibility standard, and
therefore the standard used in the Council’s Development
Control Model, relates to walking. The cycling and driving
accessibility standards will apply in the rural areas of the
District where it would not be sensible to have a park or
garden within walking distance of all residents.

Quantity Standard

There are no specific quantity standards for parks and
gardens; instead, they are subsumed into general standards
for multi-functional greenspace, covering amenity
greenspaces, natural greenspaces and parks and gardens, of:

e Rural areas of the Vale 6.5 sq m per person
e Urban areas of the Vale 13 sq m per person

For the purposes of this standard, the Council defines the
urban areas of the Vale as Abingdon, Botley (as defined on the
local plan proposals map), Faringdon, Grove and Wantage. It
will determine the most appropriate mix of amenity
greenspace, natural greenspace and parks and gardens in the

11

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 75



Other Public Spaces: Green

Vale of White Horse District Council

context of specific development proposals.

Minimum Size

5,000 sq m (0.5 hectare)

General Characteristics

Well defined boundaries or perimeter, preferably enclosed
with railings or walls

A welcoming entrance with well presented information on
the park and clear points of interest to draw visitors in
Range of natural and man-made structures of heritage
features such as ponds, statues, buildings and ornamental
railings

Reasonable privacy for the residents of nearby dwellings

Planting and Biodiversity

Diverse species of both flowering and non-flowering trees,
of various ages, including native species; also shrubs and
plants providing a range of habitats

Hedgerows, where present, reasonably dense, thick and
bushy so as to provide habitats

Some areas of dense planting, difficult for people to
penetrate and in areas where they will not provide hiding
places, but providing habitats for small animals and birds

Facilities and Features

Facilities and features such as water features, public art,
bandstands, play facilities, sports facilities and cafes which
will attract users (where appropriate)

Good views into, across and out of the park so that each
visitor is providing a form of informal surveillance for
other users

Informative interpretation signs or other material relating
to natural features (eg geology, land form); heritage
features (eg statues, historic/listed buildings, bandstands);
wildlife (eg details of the main birds and animals to be
seen in the park); landscaping (eg information on trees
and other planting and especially horticulture areas)

Definition

12

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 76



Corridors

Vale of White Horse District Council

e Pedestrian and cycling routes though urban areas,
including river and canal banks and cycleways, which are
separated from motor traffic and link residential areas to
town or village centres and community facilities such as
schools, play areas, community centres and sports
facilities.

Accessibility Standard

e No standard required

Quantity Standard

e No standard; green corridors will be created on an
opportunistic basis which makes as much use of other
forms of greenspace as possible

Minimum Size

e There is no minimum size, but corridors should generally
be not less than 500 m (0.5 km) long

General Characteristics

e Clear signposted links to the wider network of cycling and
and pedestrian routes where appropriate in order to
integrate developments with their surroundings and,
where possible, public rights of way

e Where possible, extending public rights of way and access
to the countryside for informal recreation. (Note: any
measures relating to public rights of way must be agreed
with the Countryside Service of Oxfordshire County
Council)

e Cycling routes to be at least 3 m wide and constructed to
adoptable standard as specified by Oxfordshire County
Council

e Other surfaced paths to be at least 2 m wide

e Surface treatments, landscaping and infrastructure items
(eg gates, signage, information and lighting) to be
appropriate to the use of the paths and character of the
local area

e Welcoming and apparently safe with no signs of litter,
graffiti or damaged vegetation

13

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 77



Other Public Spaces: Civic
Spaces

Vale of White Horse District Council

Adequate litter bin and “pooper” bin provision, with bins
located at points where they can easily be accessed for
emptying from the road system

Freedom from flooding so that paths are not susceptible
to water damage or become icy in winter where possible

Accessibility

Where possible all paths to be suitable for wheelchair
users throughout their length with both visual and tactile
clues to alert users to changes in direction

All routes through developments to be based on historical
routes or existing desire lines and use landscape features
as much as possible

Appropriate safety features adjacent to areas of water (eg
life buoys, warning notices)

Appropriate safety measures adjacent to or at crossings of
rail lines or busy roads

Good sightlines along the route so that users can see
potential danger well ahead

Planting and Biodiversity

Good balance and variety of plants and shrubs, including
both flowering and non-flowering species to provide year-
round colour and interest

Range of habitat types

Facilities and Features

Signposting to places of interest or destinations (eg shops,
leisure facilities, schools)

Adequate street lighting where appropriate

Definition

Town centre squares, pedestrian streets and other hard

surfaced areas designed primarily for pedestrians

Accessibility Standard

No standard required

Quantity Standard

14

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 78



e No standard; civic spaces will result from the design of
town centre areas

Minimum Size
e No minimum size
General Characteristics

e Attractive spaces with a mix of hard and soft landscaping,
in which pedestrians have priority over vehicles

e Design and detailing appropriate to the local context, with
reasonable consistency in the choice of street furniture
and signage, but used in such a way as to give each space
a unique character with high quality materials appropriate
to the local context

e Surrounding buildings front on to the space and contribute
to its vitality both during the day and the evening

e Minimum of overhead wires and other intrusive elements

Accessibility
e Readily accessible by public transport from a wide area
Planting and Biodiversity

e Depends on the nature and location of the space but
planting should consist primarily of ornamental species
and be designed to enhance the space, provide shade and
provide a setting for important buildings

Facilities and Features

e Effective street lighting (including the floodlighting of key
adjoining civic and other buildings and decorative lighting)

e Informative and easily understood directional and other
signs grouped where appropriate but without unnecessary
visual “clutter”

e Pavement cafes and similar facilities to add vibrancy in
good weather (if appropriate)

e Good mix of retail outlets (if appropriate)

e Active frontages to buildings

e Fountains and public art desirable

Vale of White Horse District Council 15
Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 79



Activity Spaces: Allotments
and Community Gardens

Vale of White Horse District Council

e Seats and litter bins

Definition

e Both statutory and all other allotment sites.

Accessibility Standard

e Walking 10 minutes/600 m
e Cycling 10 minutes/1500 m
e Driving 10 minutes/3,750 m

As allotments should be within walking distance of most
potential users, the primary accessibility standard, and
therefore the standard used in the Council’s Development
Control Model, relates to walking. The cycling and driving
accessibility standards will apply in the rural areas of the
District where it would not be sensible to have one allotment
site within walking distance of all residents.

Quantity Standard

e 3.25 sq m per person

Minimum Size

e 0.2 ha(2,000sgm)

Note: the traditional size of allotment plots is 10 rods. One rod is 272.25 sq
feet so a 10-rod plot has an area of just under 253 sg m. On many allotment
sites, however, 10-rod plots have been subdivided to smaller plots. The
minimum size of 0.2 ha equates approximately to eight 10-rod or sixteen 5-
rod plots.

General Characteristics

e Screen planting to provide some privacy while also
allowing views into and out of the site

e Clear separation between adjacent allotments

e Signage at or outside the main site entrance giving details
of ownership and how to apply for an allotment; also
emergency telephone numbers

e Securely fenced with lockable gates

Planting and Biodiversity

16

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 80



Activity Spaces: Formal Play
Provision

Vale of White Horse District Council

e Good mix of species in planting around and within the site
e Dense, bushy hedgerows (where present)

Facilities and features

¢ No allotment more than 50 m from a mains water point

e Standard lockable shed for each plot

e Toilet facilities on all sites with 20 or more plots (can be a
composting toilet if mains drainage not readily available)

e At least one on-site or on-street parking space to every 4
plots

Management and Maintenance

e All facilities in clean, safe and usable condition

Definition

e Soft and hard surfaced areas offering play opportunities
for everyone regardless of ability.

Accessibility Standard

e Walking 10 minutes/600 m

Quantity Standard

e 0.4 sg m per person

Minimum size

e 400sgm

General Characteristics

e Sited minimum of 10 m from the nearest dwelling
boundary or 30 m from the nearest door or window of the
nearest dwelling, whichever is less, and to include buffer
planting to screen site without compromising passive
surveillance

e Separated from major vehicle movement and accessible

from pedestrian routes and cycle ways
e Surfaced path to access site

17

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 81



e Safety surfacing for all equipment to comply with the
relevant standard to EN1177, free from surface water
ponding and designed to limit the need for maintenance.

e Safety surfacing around equipment for toddlers to be wet
pour or similar approved. Bark, timber chips and tiled
finishes will not be acceptable.

e All equipment must comply with the relevant standard to
EN1176

e Dog free area fenced minimum 1 m high with minimum of
two outward opening self closing pedestrian gates and 1
maintenance gate to enclose areas of grass and surfaced
areas sufficient to allow informal play and ball games

e Optimum use of changes in level, textural and colour
variety in materials used to stimulate senses

Facilities and Features

e Not less than 5 types of equipment to provide a variety of
challenges and experiences designed for a range of ages,
at least some of which should be suitable for disabled
users

e Seating provision close to equipment in sun and shade

e Litter bins at entrances

e More adventurous play to be sited separately

e Signage stating name and telephone number of agency
responsible for maintaining site

Planting and Biodiversity

e Good mix of “child-friendly” (ie not sharp, spiky or
poisonous) plant and tree species in the vicinity

e Generous use of planting to enhance amenity, stimulate
the senses of sight, sound, touch and smell throughout
the seasons and include autumnal colour

e Shade to some areas

e Shelter in exposed conditions

Management and Maintenance

e Safety surfacing in good condition

e Play equipment (including natural “equipment” such as
fallen trees) in safe and usable condition

e Seats for children or parents/carers in safe and usable
condition

Vale of White Horse District Council 18
Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 82



Activity Spaces: Multi-sport
Courts

Vale of White Horse District Council

Definition

e Hard or synthetic surfaced courts intended for football,
basketball, netball and roller/in-line skating; can have
either controlled or open access, although the latter is
more common

Accessibility Standard

e Walking 15 minutes/900 m

e Cycling 15 minutes/2250 m

e Driving 15 minutes/5625 m

As multi-courts should be within walking distance of most

potential users, the primary accessibility standard, and

therefore the standard used in the Council’s Development

Control Model, relates to walking. The cycling and driving

accessibility standards will apply in the rural areas of the

District where it would not be sensible to have at least one

multi-court within walking distance of all residents.

Quantity Standard

e 0.5 sg m per person

Minimum Size

e 36.5x 18.25 m (court only)

General Characteristics

e Reasonably sheltered from the wind

e A free-draining or impervious surface laid to appropriate
falls in order to shed water to soakaways

Planting and Biodiversity

e Amenity planting composed mainly of native species to
improve appearance, provide shelter and reduce light
pollution (where floodlit), reduce noise transfer and

promote biodiversity

Facilities and Features

19

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 83



Activity Spaces: Youth
Facilities

Vale of White Horse District Council

e Basketball hoops, if present, securely fixed with no sharp
edges

e Recessed 5-a-side goals (goals should be recessed for
safety reasons)

e Surrounded by a rebound surface 1.2 m high if intended
for 5-a-side soccer use (note, however, that this is not
desirable if the court is close to dwellings because of the
noise generated by balls hitting the rebound surface)

e Ideally enclosed by netting which will prevent balls
escaping from the court(s) area

e Ideally floodlit to give at least 75 lux

e Signage indicating ownership and who to inform of any
maintenance requirements

Management and Maintenance

e Court surface in good condition
e Line markings, where present, in good condition
e Floodlights, where present, fully operational

Definition

e Provision for young people and designed to allow them to
“hang out” and practise various sports or movement skills
such as basketball, inline skating or skateboarding. Most
teenage facilities include a mix of skateboard ramps,
outdoor basketball hoops, shelters and other more
informal areas. ldeally, they should be located close to a
multi-court (see above).

Accessibility Standard

e Walking 15 minutes/900 m
e Cycling 15 minutes/2250 m

As youth facilities should be within walking distance of most
potential users, the primary accessibility standard, and
therefore the standard used in the Council’s Development
Control Model, relates to walking. The cycling accessibility
standard will apply in those rural areas of the District where it
would not be sensible to have at least one youth facility within
walking distance of all residents.

20

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 84



Outdoor Sports Facilities:

Vale of White Horse District Council

Quantity Standard

0.5 sq m per person

Minimum Size

1,000 sq m (0.1 hectare) excluding buffer zone

General Characteristics

Located close, but not immediately adjacent, to a well
used pedestrian route but more than 50 m from the
nearest dwelling

Area of at least 1,000 sq m, with facilities for teenagers
(see definition above)

Surrounded by a buffer zone, possibly with appropriate
planting, between the facility and nearest dwellings
Suitable safety surfacing beneath and around play
equipment

Accessible to children or adults with disabilities

Effective drainage of all surfaces

Planting and Biodiversity

Tough, but not prickly landscaping in the immediate
vicinity of the area

Facilities and Features

Mix of facilities such as skateboard/BMX ramps, basketball
goals, teenage shelters

Casual seating

Low level lighting with both light and dark areas as
appropriate

Adequate provision of litter bins

Management and Maintenance

Surfaces and structures in good condition and repaired as
necessary
Free from litter and dangerous materials eg broken glass

Definition

21

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 85



Artificial Turf Pitches

Vale of White Horse District Council

e Artificial turf pitches for football, hockey and rugby/rugby
training

Accessibility Standard

e Driving 15 minutes/5,625 m

While it will be desirable for many users of ATPs to walk or
cycle to them, they serve a wide area and therefore a driving
distance threshold is appropriate.

Quantity Standard

e 0.2 sg m per person

Minimum Size

e 1 pitch with changing accommodation and parking
General Characteristics

e As for grass sports pitches (see below)

Accessibility

As for grass sports pitches (see below), plus:

e Hard surfaced path between changing pavilion and
entrance(s) to artificial turf pitch(es)

Planting and Biodiversity
As for grass sports pitches, plus:

e No broad leaved trees within 10 m or any pitch perimeter
line marking

Facilities and Features
Changing pavilions
e As for grass sports pitches

Pitches, practice areas and other facilities

22

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 86



Outdoor Sports Facilities:
Bowling Greens

Vale of White Horse District Council

As for grass sports pitches, plus:

Artificial surfaces to comply with relevant governing body
requirements and BS 7044: Artificial Sports Surfaces

All artificial turf pitches (and any safety surround areas) to
be fully enclosed within lockable chain link, weldmesh or
other see-through fence capable of withstanding ball
impacts at least 3.0 m high along the sides of the pitch
and 5 m high at the ends of the pitch

Third generation artificial turf pitches for football to
comply with the International Artificial Turf Standard
published by the Federation Internationale de Football

Management and Maintenance

As for grass sports pitches

Definition

Lawn bowls green meeting appropriate governing body
standards

Accessibility Standard

Walking 15 minutes/900m
Driving 15 minutes/5625 m

As bowling greens should be within walking distance of most
potential users, the primary accessibility standard, and
therefore the standard used in the Council’s Development

Control Model, relates to walking. The driving accessibility

standards will apply in the rural areas of the District where it

would not be sensible to have at least one green within

walking distance of all residents.

Quantity Standard

0.1 sg m per person

Minimum Size

6 rinks plus banks and ditches, a pathway at least 2 m
wide all round the green and a pavilion. This requires a

23

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 87



Outdoor Sports Facilities:
Grass Sports Pitches

Vale of White Horse District Council

site of not less than approximately 41 x 47 m, ie
approximately 1,900 sq m (0.19 hectare).

General Characteristics

e Green, banks and ditches to meet relevant governing body
standards

Accessibility

e Hard surfaced path all round the green

Planting and Biodiversity

e Shelter planting/screening to provide summer time shelter
from wind, privacy for bowlers and support biodiversity

e No broad-leaved trees overhanging the green

Facilities and Features

e Greens to have at least six rinks (to allow play along and
across the green to even out wear)

e Changing pavilion with at least male and female changing
rooms and social area

Management and Maintenance

e Grass sward kept short and clear of weeds

Definition

e Pitches for football (all codes), cricket, hockey, rugby (all
codes)

Accessibility Standard

e Walking 15 minutes/900 m
e Driving 15 minutes/5625 m

As pitches should be within walking distance of most potential
casual users, the primary accessibility standard, and therefore
the standard used in the Council’s Development Control
Model, relates to walking. However, the driving standard will
apply in the rural areas of the District where it would not be

24

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 88



Vale of White Horse District Council

sensible to have at least one pitch within walking distance of
all residents.

Quantity Standard

1.6 sq m per person

Minimum Size

Two pitches with changing accommodation and parking in
Abingdon, Botley (as defined on the local plan proposals
map), Faringdon, Grove and Wantage; one pitch with
changing accommodation in all other areas

General Characteristics

External lighting in car parking areas

External lighting on pavilions with PIR detectors

Signs indicating that no dogs must at any time be allowed
on the pitches

Shade trees in car parking areas

Adequately separated from adjoining residential properties
Adequate measures in place to control light spill from
floodlighting to adjoining properties and related land

Accessibility

Hard surfaced paths following desire lines from parking
areas to changing facilities

Path system appropriate to the circulation needs of users
of the site, with wide, hard surfaces in heavily trafficked
areas (for example, at the exit from changing rooms)

Planting and Biodiversity

Strong structure planting around the perimeter of the site
using native species (designed as buffer planting to reduce
wind on pitches and noise or light spill as appropriate to
the site and adjoining properties or roads and also to
promote biodiversity)

Internal structure planting where appropriate

Amenity or naturalistic landscaping in the vicinity of
buildings and car parking

25

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 89



Facilities and Features
Changing pavilions

e Changing rooms (with the number of rooms appropriate to
the number of pitches or other facilities on site) consisting
of changing spaces, showers and drying area, plus
separate changing for match officials where appropriate

e Capable of simultaneous male and female team and/or
officials’ use, where appropriate

e First aid room (essential only for pitch sports and athletics)

e Space for refreshments with kitchen

¢ No rooflights in flat roofs on single storey buildings

e Adequate secure maintenance equipment storage

e Lockable security shutters on all pavilion doors and
windows

e Passive surveillance from nearby properties

Pitches, practice areas and other facilities

e Pitch orientation generally between 35 degrees west and
20 degrees east of N-S wherever possible

e Playing facilities meeting relevant governing body
requirements in terms of length, width, even-ness of
surface, boundary distances (cricket) and side clearances
or safety margins

e Floodlighting to relevant governing body requirements for
the standard of play

¢ No end to end slope on football, hockey, lacrosse or rugby
or other winter season pitches greater than 1:40 (1:80
preferable); no side to side slope greater than 1:40 (1:60
preferable)

e Well drained pitch surfaces

e Winter sports grass pitches to have pipe drains plus sand
slits where necessary (note: sand slits to be renewed every
10 years)

Management and Maintenance

e Grass lengths appropriate to sport with full grass cover on
grass pitches

e Posts and goals safe and free from rust or sharp edges,
with hooks for nets where appropriate

Vale of White Horse District Council 26
Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 90



Outdoor Sports Facilities:
Tennis Courts

Vale of White Horse District Council

e Line markings straight and easily seen

e Surface repairs carried out quickly and effectively

e Surround netting and entrance gates to artificially surfaced
areas in good condition

e Floodlights in full working order

e Information on site ownership and the facilities available at
the site entrance

e Contact details for emergencies at any pavilion

Definition

e Tennis courts, usually with a hard or synthetic surface, and
with or without floodlighting

Accessibility Standard

e Walking 15 minutes/900m
e Driving 15 minutes/5625 m

As tennis courts should be within walking distance of most
potential users, the primary accessibility standard, and
therefore the standard used in the Council’s Development
Control Model, relates to walking. The cycling and driving
accessibility standards will apply in the rural areas of the
District where it would not be sensible to have at least one
court within walking distance of all residents.

Quantity Standard

e 0.8 sg m per person

Minimum size

e 36.5 x 18.25 m (court and safety margins) plus surround

General Characteristics

e Reasonably sheltered from the wind

e A free-draining or impervious surface laid to appropriate
falls to shed water to soakaways

e Surrounded by netting which prevents balls escaping from

the court(s) area
e Oriented within 30 degrees of north-south

27

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 91



Planting and Biodiversity

e Amenity planting composed mainly of native species to
improve appearance, provide shelter, reduce noise transfer
and promote biodiversity

Facilities and Features

e Posts and tennis nets

e Clearly marked courts with adequate safety surrounds

e Floodlighting (if present) to meet governing body
requirements

Management and Maintenance

e Court(s) surface, posts and nets, surround netting and
floodlighting (if present) in good condition

Indoor Sports Halls and Definition

Swimming Pools
e Large scale indoor sports facilities operated by the public,

commercial or voluntary sectors
Accessibility Standard
e Driving 15 minutes/5625 m

While it will be desirable for many users of indoor sports
facilities to walk or cycle to them, they serve a wide area and
therefore a driving distance threshold is appropriate.

Quantity Standard

e Sports halls, other indoor “dry” sports facilities and related
ancillary accommodation: 0.08 sq m of building per
person

e Indoor swimming pools and related ancillary
accommodation: 0.06 sq m of pool building per person

Minimum Size

e Sports halls: 4 badminton court hall plus changing
e Pools: 25 m x 4 lanes (8.5 m total width) plus changing

Vale of White Horse District Council 28
Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 92



Vale of White Horse District Council

General Characteristics

e External lighting, with movement or passive infra-red (PIR)
detectors

e Entrance clearly identifiable from the car park

¢ No landscaping in which potential attackers could hide

Accessibility

e Accessible by public transport: nearest bus stop within
250 m of entrance/access points

¢ Adequate parking for the range of facilities available, with
a tarmac surface in good repair and at least two
designated disabled spaces close to the main entrance

e Cycle parking

Planting and Biodiversity

e Attractive landscaping to the site and building,
incorporating native species where possible

Facilities and Features

Internal Support Areas

e Reception desk immediately inside main entrance and
clearly visible

e Disabled toilets

e Baby changing facility in male and female changing areas
or toilets

e General accessibility for people with disabilities - see
separate checklist

e Décor and finishes in good condition

e Clear route from reception to changing and activity areas

Activity Areas

e Meeting appropriate governing body or Sport England
standards

e Adequate storage, accessed from activity areas

e Mat storage, where required, physically separate and
vented to outside air

e Décor and finishes in good condition

29

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 93



Useful Information

Vale of White Horse District Council

Changing Areas

Separate male and female changing (although mixed sex
villages desirable for pools)

Adequate locker provision

Adequate shower and toilet provision

Décor and finishes in good condition

Management and Maintenance

Professionally managed

CABE Space (undated), A Guide to Producing Park and
Green Space Management Plans

CABE Space (undated), Green Flag Award Winners (various
years)

Children’s Play Council (2002), More than Swings and
Roundabouts: Planning for outdoor play

DETR/CABE (2000), By Design - Urban design in the
planning system. towards better practice

DTLR (2002), /mproving Urban Parks, Play Areas and Open
Spaces (report on research undertaken by the University of
Sheffield for the Urban Green Spaces Taskforce)

English Nature (1995), Accessible Natural Greenspace in
Towns and Cities (Research Report 153)

English Nature (2002), Providing Accessible Natural
Greenspace in Towns and Cities

Kit Campbell and Geraint John (ed, 1995), Handbook of
Sports and Recreation Building Design, Volumes 1, 2 and 3
National Playing Fields Association (2001), The Six Acre
Standard

Sport England (various dates), Lottery Guidance Notes
Sport England (various dates), Planning Bulletins

30

Supplementary Planning Document: Open Space, Sport and Recreation: Future Provision

Page 94



Agenda Item 10

GOO0/17829/3 — Mr. A Hayward
Proposed erection of a garden shed.
The Parsonage House, Goosey, Faringdon Oxon, SN7 8PA.

1.0 The Proposal

1.1 This planning application seeks permission for the erection of a wooden shed to the
rear of this detached Grade |l Listed Building. The site is located in Goosey
Conservation Area.

1.2  Extracts from the application plans are at Appendix 1.

1.3  The application comes to Committee as the applicant is a Councillor.

2.0 Planning History

2.1 The building was permitted to be converted from a school and dwelling house into one
dwelling in 1971.

3.0 Planning Policies

3.1 Policy HE4 of the adopted Local Plan relates to the impact of the development on the
characteristics of the listed building in its setting.

3.2  Policy HE1 relates to the impact of development on the established character or
appearance of a Conservation Area.

3.3 Policy DC1 relates to design and its impact on the character of the locality.

3.4  Policy D9 relates to the amenities of neighbouring properties and the wider
environment.

4.0 Consultations

4.1  Goosey Parish Meeting has raised no objections to the application.

4.2 The Conservation Officer has raised no objections to the application.

4.3  No neighbour comments have been received.

5.0 Officer Comments

5.1  The proposed shed is only 2.5m high at the apex and is to be constructed from
traditional garden shed materials, shiplap timber with felt roof. It is to be positioned
within an existing hedged enclosure, screening the shed’s north, west and east
elevations, and the garden boundary hedge provides screening to the south. As such
the siting, scale, design and proposed finishes and materials of the proposal are
considered to respect the characteristics of the listed building in its setting.

5.2  The proposed shed will not be visible from the roadside or nearby open areas and is
therefore not considered to present any negative impact on the character or
appearance of the conservation area.

194/07

Page 95



5.3 There is no impact on the amenities of the neighbouring properties.

6.0 Recommendation

6.1 Itis recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the following
conditions:

1. TL1 - Time Limit

2. CN8 — Submission of full details of materials

194/07 Page 96



..\uwjorw IS - WY id ‘U ¢RN:

amw 3

APPENDIX 1

jams GOS8/t BIVIS

mAxUNNE\ 0 My fzesoa(es

niuvy

A

HINN W)

¢ A b - £2 M b
Ic'lf,’!.

et
[T,

wosi = gose’t
WS/ =05¢gl:1
Wwog = 00S:1
wegL =002t
Wy =00i:¢
wig = 0G|
we'L =0zl

Page 97



1
x
o
=
T
o
o
<

@

M\WNME\UOO Nt 3eson|go

NS

s

HIySN

21 Mar i

wost = g0sc:t
wsg2 = 0sel:4
wog = 00S: 1
wzl =00zt
w9 =00L:L

1sv3

RPIEEE

Hihog

Ny

we =051

weg'L =02t

AS3IM

=l
N ]

#3529 3Smop 3I0unaTIYY

dogsspzopm Am(y AaeaH 8% 01
SNatyw NI

e e

~

Page 98



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.0

2.1

2.2

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

Agenda ltem 11

HIN/19721/4 - M S Lawrence Ltd
Erection of a terrace of 3 x 3 bedroom dwellings.
Land adjoining 1 High Street, Hinton Waldrist, SN7 8RN

The Proposal

This application seeks planning permission for the demolition of a range of garages, to
be replaced with a terrace of 3 dwellings with 2 parking spaces for each dwelling,
accessed off The Row. Planning permission was granted in January for the erection of
2 semi-detached dwellings with parking. This application is a revised scheme which
includes part of the garden of the adjoining property, No.1 Laggots Close.

The site is located on the corner of High Street and The Row. It is bounded by
traditional cottage style dwellings to the north, west and east, with the more modern
development of Laggots Close to the south.

A copy of the plans showing the location of the proposal, the design of the dwellings
together with extracts from the Design and Access Statement are attached at
Appendix 1.

The application comes to Committee because several letters of objection have been
received and the views of Hinton Waldrist Parish Council differ from the
recommendation.

Planning History

In September 2006, an application to erect two semi-detached dwellings fronting onto
High Street was withdrawn due to adverse impacts on the amenities of neighbouring
dwellings.

In April 2007, outline planning permission was granted for a 2 storey detached
dwelling. In September 2007, an application for a pair of semi-detached dwellings was
withdrawn. In January 2008, a revised application for a pair of semi-detached
dwellings was granted permission. A copy of the approved plans for this scheme is
attached at Appendix 2.

Planning Policies

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011

Policy GS5 (making efficient use of land and buildings) seeks to promote the efficient
re-use of previously developed / unused land and buildings within settlements
(provided there is no conflict with other policies in the Local Plan).

Policy H13 (development elsewhere) allows ‘infill’ development of one or two dwellings
within the existing built-up area of Hinton Waldrist.

Policies DC1, DC5, DC6, and DC9 (quality of new development) are relevant and seek
to ensure that all new development is of a high standard of design / landscaping, does
not cause harm to the amenity of neighbours, and is acceptable in terms of highway
safety.

194/07

Page 99



3.4

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.0

5.1

5.2

PPS3, “Housing”, is also relevant and reiterates the key objective of developing
previously developed sites, where suitable, ahead of greenfield sites and making the
most effective and efficient use of land.

Consultations

Hinton Waldrist Parish Council objects to the application. Their comments are
attached at Appendix 3.

County Engineer — no objections, subject to conditions.

Consultant Architect — comments are attached at Appendix 4.

Drainage Engineer — no objections (subject to conditions).

8 letters of objection have been received, which are summarised as follows:

As stated in relation to earlier applications, residents are concerned over the
increased number of vehicles which will have to park on street in The Row. The
current off road area used by residents will be used for the new access to the
dwellings.

A condition should be imposed to ensure construction vehicles do not park in The
Row, as this will inconvenience residents.

A parking restriction should be imposed to prevent people parking outside the
windows of the properties in The Row.

The dwellings will impact on the vision available at the road junction with the High
Street, to the detriment of highway safety.

The positioning of the front door onto High Street will only encourage on street
parking there.

The existing sewer system regularly gets blocked. New dwellings will only add to
this problem.

The proposal will be built on land that absorbs surface water. This will lead to local
flooding.

The new dwellings will be higher than and out of character with existing properties.

The proposal will result in a loss of privacy / light to neighbours, in particular to No
1 High Street, Laggots Farm and properties in The Row.

If approved, the materials used must be natural and not reconstituted stone.

Policy H13 states there should be no more than 1 or 2 dwellings as infilling. This
application proposes 3 dwellings. How can it be so easy to get permission for 3
houses after permission was granted for 27

Officer Comments

The main issues in this case are considered to be 1) the principle of the development
in this location, 2) the impact of the proposal on the character and appearance of the
area, including its design, 3) the impact of the proposal on neighbouring properties, 4)
the safety of the access and parking arrangements, and 5) drainage.

On the first issue, Hinton Waldrist is a village which in planning terms is classed as a
small settlement and is thus restricted to infill housing proposals of only 1 or 2 small
dwellings as outlined in Local Plan Policy H13. The site in question lies within the
built-up area of the settlement and is therefore considered acceptable for
redevelopment.

194/07

Page 100



5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

The proposal is for 3 dwellings on a larger site than previously considered, which at
face value appears to conflict with Policy H13. However, planning permission has
already been granted for 2 dwellings, and the applicant could submit a separate
application for an additional dwelling on the additional land which would comply with
the Policy. In considering whether this proposal for 3 dwellings is acceptable in Policy
terms, your Officers have had due regard to the appeal decision at Home Farm,
Sparsholt (July 2006). This was a scheme for 5 dwellings. Planning permission had
previously been granted for 2 separate applications for 2 dwellings on different parts of
the site (making a total of 4 dwellings).

The Inspector stated: “It seems to me that the Council’s sole objection is that the
revised wording for Policy H12 (now H13 in the adopted Local Plan) that has been
adopted by the Council limits each new housing scheme in villages such as Sparsholt
to no more than one or two dwellings as infilling developments. However, there is
nothing in the (Local Plan) Inspector’s report or the new policy that restricts such
infilling to just one scheme of one or two dwellings in each village. Indeed at the
Hearing, it was confirmed by the Council’s representative that it would be possible for
the appellant to submit separate planning applications for the new housing and still
comply with Policy H12.”

He went onto state in paragraph 8: “Whilst | agree that Sparsholt has few facilities, |
fail to understand how the Council can regard a number of individual planning
applications for one or two dwellings as being an acceptable form of development, but
one comprehensive scheme for a similar number of dwellings as being unsustainable.
Although new development schemes must be considered against adopted planning
policy, there is also a need to ensure any decision restricting housing development is
on a sound and proper basis in order to assess whether the development would cause
significant harm to any interests of acknowledged importance. But, for the Council to
resist the current scheme simply because it is a comprehensive proposal is
unreasonable”.

Whilst the Sparsholt appeal was dismissed on other grounds, the appellant was
successful in an award of costs on the basis of the Council’s policy interpretation. In
the light of this decision, your Officers consider that the principle of redeveloping the
current site in the manner proposed with 3 dwellings is considered acceptable.

Regarding the second issue, the scale of development in the form proposed is not
considered to be out of keeping with the locality. Other two storey dwellings exist
nearby and the proposed dwellings remain in the style previously approved with
traditionally proportioned narrow building spans, small painted timber windows and
slate roofs, all of which are typically found on nearby properties. The rear projections
remain subordinate to the main building form and are not considered to be harmful in
the streetscene. The overall massing, bulk and design of the dwellings are also
considered to fit within the site so as not to appear visually cramped on this prominent
corner plot. Consequently Officers consider the scheme proposed is not an
overdevelopment of the site and providing natural stone is used, its visual impact is
acceptable.

Turning to the third issue, the impact on neighbouring properties, your Officers
consider that no harm would be caused to those properties opposite the site to the
north, on High Street. The properties most affected would be those in The Row, No1
Laggots Close to the south and 1 High Street to the west. Any impact on light or

194/07

Page 101



5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

6.0

6.1

privacy to these properties, however, is not considered to be sufficiently harmful to
warrant refusal as, in your Officer’'s opinion, the dwellings have been carefully
designed to protect neighbouring privacy and amenity, whilst achieving a
complementary spatial relationship with the existing pattern of development.

In terms of parking and access, the proposed arrangements in highway safety terms
are considered acceptable. The parking provision shown provides 2 spaces for each
dwelling. Adequate visibility can be achieved at the new access to ensure pedestrian
and highway safety.

The Consultant Architect has raised concern over the likely visual impact of the formal
parking arrangements. His comments stem from an assumption that the site lies
within the Hinton Waldrist Conservation Area, which it does not. Furthermore, the
parking arrangements for 2 dwellings have already been agreed with the granting of
the previous permission in January. Coupled with the informal parking that currently
takes place on the area to the front of this site, your Officers consider no undue visual
harm would be caused by the parking arrangements for the third dwelling.

With regard to concerns raised over the loss of an area of informal parking, and loss of
the use of the existing garages, these parking arrangements are not material planning
considerations. Your Officers have no evidence that existing residents have a right to
park on the land in front of the site, and the renting of the garages from the applicant is
a civil arrangement. The County Engineer has raised no objection to the proposal,
and thus planning permission again could not reasonably be refused on these
grounds.

On the issue of drainage, it is not considered that these additional dwellings would

overburden the existing sewerage network. The Drainage Engineer has raised no
objections.

Recommendation

That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:

1. TL1 — Time Limit

2. MC2 — Sample Materials

3. RE3 — Restriction on extensions / alterations to dwelling (PD rights removeqd)

4. PD Restriction of fence erection and retention of existing stone wall fronting
High Street.

5. RES8 — Submission of drainage details
6. HY3 - Access in accordance with specified plan
7. HY25 — Parking is accordance with specified plan

8. No development shall commence until a scheme for off site highway works has
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the District Planning Authority.

194/07

Page 102



The approved works shall be completed prior to first occupation. Of any
awelling hereby approved.

Informative:

In respect of meeting the requirements of Condition 2, it is expected that the dwellings
hereby approved shall be constructed using natural stone.

194/07 Page 103



ifnn g g P S e e v oty s T T L e e T LT e T
; Disuabal + aInpoayDIo pdBy ~ R

.
) [P
[y r—— " v
ava JIVOS 123rQ¥d
s
VIS'9r00 e o i
I ®pop  As ‘ON ONIMVQ ONIMYND IN3AD

¢\ _.2&_\ Y My spboofro

LOHBASR 3pis

syuapdd
iidiiti

191Ng
PIO &Y.

APPENDIX 1

Page 104



[l Lo7¢ e N
ossusbai + ainjoelydio pdoy

=T g

ocmn
B heinnadd
o T
ava YOS LI3rodd
uompecte
5059500 P A
3PP A "ON ONIMYAQ ONIMYNQ AN3ND
J:.;w.IvoO\ 20
o a
]
-
X | cmanc
— 1@WN
Q -
w .
1
Qo L_]] zeea
< : =
1
i
g
;
A |
b
H
uoeAStS U
L._n | «_.1 |
[ENZLEINIR 4 eacuddy Dunniey | %
]

{

!

.
j sciaizess oasszezieam,

| THTHE THT T,

o
2o = OO h
-} = 00T
g o 09h:h
g = 00h
3Ll g _- _\ _- \_-
! S/ITLELINIH JR) RAcuddy Buparsig T SoRNOY PAUORISP RueE Bugsra i
Jequin pajured
18I00D/SMOPUM
uoisuaxe
Jeas 0} Buippep Jequin
*(woned wopuel)
8UOIS BUSOTLUCD 'SifeMm
alejS 1Joou
SpUdlew

005"} Ueid wooiq Bugisixe

MOIA UMOQ

$HoNsSIPPI4 @

L enbuiepy

Jiddid
MBI\ UMOQ

y Spolseppd
,...,. anbiuiepy @

005+ wed xoorq pesodoid

Page 105

1Bung
PIO 8yL



Planning, Design and Access Statement

Introduction

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a terrace of 3 x three bed
dwellings on the site. The site incorporates the apphcatlon area for the recently approved
pair of dwellings (application HIN/19721/3) together with & portion of the side garden area
of 1 Laggots Close, which has been purchased by the applicant.

This application follows the submission of a pre-application letter on 31st January
attaching plans showing: 1) the erection of a terrace of 4 dwellings across the site, or 2)
the erection of a detached dwelling between the approved pair of dwellings and 1
Laggots Close.

Following the pre-application submission, Officers suggested that a terrace of three
dwellings incorporating part of the side garden of 1 Laggots Close would be preferred
and, as you will see, the proposal has been amended accordingly. As per the previous
approval the proposed dwellings would be built in stone wuth slate roofs and the windows
are proposed to be of painted timber construction. '

Site Context

The application site is slightly larger than that subject of application HIN/19721/3 as it
incorporates a portion of the side garden of 1 Laggots Close in addition to the scrubland
and pre-fabricated garage block located on the junction of The Row and High Street.

The terrace of dwellings opposite the site, along The Row, is uniform in appearance and
design, being (as the road name suggests) a row of stone terraced cottages under slate
roofs. The cottages are set close to the road edge and there is no footway. The
properties on Laggots Close (including no. 1) to the south of the site are post war semi-
detached and terraced dwellings built in red brick under concrete tiled roofs. 1 High
Street to the west of the site is a traditional stone cottage with a slate roof and The Old
Butter House opposite is a converted agricultural building of similar materials.

Design

The proposed dwellings have been sited to provide an appropriate form of development
to turn the corner of The Row into High Street. The ridge line runs north south in
accordance with that of the terraced traditional cottages opposite, whilst the careful use
of openings on the north elevation of the proposed terrace ensures there is also interest
on the High Street elevation. A low stone wall is proposed on this boundary to match that
opposite at 1The Row.

The main body of the proposed dwellings have a simple rectangular plan form and are
proposed at a height that would be commensurate with the height of surrounding
development. The proposal would be fully in keeping with the existing streetscene and
the character and appearance of the area and will provide an appropriate addition in this
gap that will appear as a natural continuation of the traditional development which
surrounds it.

The span of the roof has been reduced from nearly 9m to just over 7m in order to provide

a more traditional depth of building and ensure that the proposal would not appear as an
overdevelopment of the plot. To the rear, each dwelling is served by a single storey

APPENDIX 1
Page 106



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

projection the walls of which are to be clad in contrasting, albeit complimentary,
horizontal timber boarding.

As per the previously approved scheme the proposed dwellings would be served by a
small number of rooflights in the elevation fronting The Row to provide light to the master
bedrooms in the roof voids.

In order to provide some engagement with the pﬁbiic realm on High Street, the northern
end plot would have its pedestrian entrance on that road as would the southern end plot
in order to best emphasise the symmetrical form of the terrace in views from The Row.

Amenity

Each proposed dwelling would have an appropriate sized garden in order to ensure that
a decent level of amenity space is provided and, furthermore, the living rooms of the
proposed dwellings would not be harmfully overlooked from any vantage point.

Each of the proposed dwellings would be served by a private amenity space in excess of
60 sq. metres and, notwithstanding that the garden of 1 Laggots Close would be
reduced in area as a result of this proposal the residual rear amenity space available to
the occupiers of no.1 would still be in excess of 100 sq. metres.

The position of the buildings on the plot has been devised so that the main rear wall of
the proposed dwellings would be over 14m from the flank elevation of No1 High Street.
This complies with the Council's design guidance that rear walls should be separated
from flank walls by 12m (40ft). Furthermore, there would be no bedroom windows facing
towards No1 High Street in order to preserve its amenity. Only bathroom and landing
windows would face the rear at first floor level.

With reference to the relationship with 1 Laggots Close, the flank elevation of the
southern most dwelling contains 1 first floor window to bedroom 2 and an attic window to
bedroom 3 which would face the flank elevation of no.1. However, the flank elevation of
no.1 contains no openings and, as such, there would be no potential for intrusive views
into the property from these windows.

The first floor window would, potentially allow an oblique view to the rear garden area of
no.1 but, in truth, this would be upon a part of the site that is already overlooked more
directly by the first floor windows of the attached semi (no. 2 Laggots Close) such that no
material loss of privacy would be caused. However, in the event that Officers are
concerned about the potential for overlooking from this window, the applicant would have
no objection to re-siting this window further to the east above the entrance porch.

Access

It is proposed that all three dwellings are accessed from The Row and that each dwelling
has two frontage off-street parking spaces from which a level threshold to each dwelling
is to be provided. The access conforms to the standards in the “Manual for Streets” and
has adequate visibility and would not be of any detriment to highway safety.

The dwellings have been designed with a level access and downstairs WC as is required
by the building regulations to ensure they will be accessible to all persons.
Planning Policy Context and Considerations

New residential development within Hinton Waldrist falls to be considered.by Policy H13
of the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan, which states as follows:

APPENDIX 1

Page 107



S e i ot s igodains SZL i Son . e Rl e s

' BigUebE + dinydejyoio pdoy e TUT T eI T tipem

4r/H(I//47%/ ooz

B SNECNNCN o

wie e st o

ava Vs 153r0%4

* Ly Uy - -
g1zovo | Pyt [
i eiop a8 ‘ONONImMYaa | ONImMvIa Nand

WO eV AT NOISDI0I0NG
IYAQHddY

JIVHOL0HIC SIOINEIS ONINNY TS
0NN0) DOSHI ISHON 1LHM 0 TIVA

o1 0 v soud

B DU NS $10u3 e wog
et Xy Ados & wa
wa = 052101 P D by ooRue Mo A
woe = opgcy. Uoes) v Swite. pue ol
i = oot WOGo0 A powszraid % Bomars o
-y =005:1
hendetcild
-a oz

05211 ueid uogeoo|

Jenng
PIO =YL

APPENDIX 2



AN SN

AENNEEI N s g St
W v 001 Lo02 ¢ 3 o msecvioe pusr

vq FVOS 103rodd

00Z9v00 v omesea | kit

[OP A8 "ON ONIMYaa ONIMVAQ _ INFND

1equ paluied $J00R/SMOPLIM
uoisuaixs feas o} Buippelo

Vi looyome

|||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||

W

. ,,,/ suiddig
\

//
5 /
A

\

6YPOZ000 J0QuIi N BOUBINT POAIBSEI TIGEF Iy 2002

MBIA UMOQ

SHOUSaIPPId @

Jequin '(wayed wopues) ' ]
BUOIS 91ISOALUCO ‘SiEM

i
oS Joos i m u 0

APPENDIX 2

sfeustew RIS St 2

p i
TVAOHddY m m |
31VBOLO3HIC S30IAEIS ONINNVIA [ !
DN DRAISHE 1SH0H LM 40 TVA \ a
Japn:
oBp3 o
, _ R PIO 8yl
uoneAsle 1as ybly i UoHEAdIS JEB) . m:_Qa_n_ G¥POZ0001 DqGLINU 80u3dN “pensesel Sbu Ity * 2002 ubuAdos umoi0 @

006’1 uBid Yo0iq pasodoxd

Page 109

UOHEASS 10845 9500 siobbe|
A + ._P
aus sasnoy paipelep 1was Buisixo

T
s = oast |
we, = o5zt “a “ES
mmo.".m .v., \“m », h
=E Ay =3 S A,
AW \Y;
. | Y 208 DN N

smemmonne seung
Pttt PIO 3yL



0S8 Apr 08 08:40 SFS intec Ltd 01865 820380 P-

9 April 2008

Hinton Waldrist Parish Council

Planning ApplicationHIN/19721/4 - Erection of a terrace of three 3no bedroom dwellings.

Parish Council Response.

1.

2.

Natural stone rather than composite materials should be used.
No trees must be planted behind the stone wall as the roots will destroy it.
There must be no timber boarding - not appropriate and not in keeping

Original stone wall adjacent to High Street must not be removed and must be maintained
and repaired.

Velux roof lights would be preferable on the rear of the properties.

Access on to the High Street should be reduced - drawing shows room for a ' Smart Car ' -
should be the width of a wheel chair.

Ownership of land - The red line shows there is a large area in the developers ownership
but our enquiries show that this is highway land

Point 6 of Design states that a low stone wall is proposed while point 26 comments that the
garden would be screened in part by an existing stone wall boundary - what do they mean?

Parking - Real concerns regarding the parking of 6 cars in the space available, traffic issues
along with current parking overflow on the green. The vehicles associated with the new
housing will clog up The Row. Residents in Laggotts Close have raised their concerns
regarding overflow parking.

3}

APPENDIX 3

Page 110



2

2o

i

2
i
3
a

PR ey s R

oy

R s

McCoy Associates Chartered Town Planners

54 New Street © Henley on Thames © Oxon RGY 2BT o Tel: 01491 579113
Fax: 01491 410852 www.mccoyassociates.co.uk email denis@mccoyassoc.co.uk

10 April 2008
For the attention of Alison Blyth your ref HIN/19721/4

Deputy Director (Planning and Community Strategy)

The Vale of White Horse District Council

PO Box 127

The Abbey House

ABINGDON 0OX14 3JN email and post

Dear Sir

re: Erection of a terrace of three 3-bed dwellings
1 High Street and 1 Laggots Close, Hinton Waldrist

Thank you for the drawings of this project received on 28 March and on which you have
requested design comments.

This is a proposal to replace a two dwellings scheme for which planning permission has been
granted by a three dwellings scheme. Since the materials and details are so similar, or even
identical, to what has been approved | shall not comment on them. They are confirmed as
acceptable in the village, and the relationship of the northern gable and retained boundary wall
to the High Street is commendably sensitive.

However, in my judgement, that is not the case with the parking arrangements proposed. The
scheme depends upon six open parking spaces in front of the terrace, with a shared access
drive duplicating the public highway.

Though | appreciate that the ground at the road junction seems to be used for incidental
parking, and the dilapidated garage structures on the site are unattractive, the space has an
informal, soft, village character. | doubt whether the formalised parking arrangements now
proposed to replace the present arrangements (or in addition to informal parking on what
would remain of the grassy area?) could be said to preserve or enhance the character or
appearance of Hinton Waldrist Conservation Area, of which the site is presumably part.

For this reason alone | am reluctant to support this proposal.

Your papers and drawings are returned with the postal copy of this letter.

Yours faithfully

APPENDIX 4

McCOY ASSOCIATES encs

This letter refers to drawing nos C046.50B and .51A,
and Planning Design & Access Statement

Denis F McCoy DiplArch{Oxford) ARIBA FRTPI FRIAI

Christopher R Baker Company Secretary

McCoy Associates Limited, company registered in England no 4457420
VAT No. 363 3525 59

Page 111




1.0

1.1

2.0

194/07

Agenda ltem 12

ASH/19908/3 — Mr A Lord

Erection of a single dwelling, single garage and re-use existing access
(resubmission)

Land adjoining Tilling, Berrycroft, Ashbury.

The Proposal

This application was presented to Committee on 21st April 2008, when it was resolved
to refuse planning permission, with reasons to be agreed at a future meeting.
Committee expressed concern regarding the impact of the proposal on the setting of
the adjacent listed buildings and the Conservation Area. In this regard Members did
not consider that the previous reason for refusal had been overcome. Further
concerns were raised by Committee relating to the impact of the proposal on the
residential amenity of the occupiers of No.3 Berrycroft.

Recommendation

The suggested reasons for refusal are:

1. Due to the size of the proposed dwelling and its siting on the plot the proposal would
be over dominant and would harm the setting of the adjacent listed cottages, which
are small in scale and have a staggered roof line down towards the bottom of
Berrycroft. The proposal would also be of significant harm to the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies
DC1, HE1 and HE4 of the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011.

2. Due to the proximity and orientation of the proposed dwelling in relation to the
adjacent neighbouring property, No.3 Berrycroft, the proposal would result in an
unacceptable level of overlooking into the rear garden of that dwelling. This would
result in a harmful impact on the amenities of the occupiers of this dwelling. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policy DC9 of the adopted Vale of White Horse
Local Plan 2011.

Page 112



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

APPENDIX 1

ASH/19908/3 — Mr A Lord
Erection of a single dwelling, single garage and re-use existing access (resubmission)
Land adjoining Tilling, Berrycroft, Ashbury.

The Proposal

The application is for a single dwelling with a detached single garage. The dwelling would
measure a maximum width of 17.2 metres (13.5 of which is at two-storey height) and a
maximum height of 7.6 metres. The proposal is adjacent to listed cottages to the north, and is
within the Ashbury Conservation Area.

Extracts from the application plans are at Appendix

This application is an amendment to a previous permission on the site for a single dwelling
which was renewed in 2007, and remains extant. This application is submitted further to a
previously refused scheme, which was also an amendment to the permitted scheme. This
application seeks to address the refusal reason. The planning history is set out below, and
the permitted and refused schemes are appended.

The application comes to Committee at the request of the Local Member Councillor Yvonne
Constance.

Planning History

ASH/9768/4 — Erection of dwelling and new access. Permitted in November 2002.

ASH/199908 — Erection of new dwelling, double garage and re-use existing access. Withdrawn
in February 2007.

ASH/19908/1 — Erection of new dwelling, double garage and re-use existing access. Withdrawn
in July 2007.

ASH/19908/2 — Erection of new dwelling, double garage and re-use existing access. Refused in
November 2007 due to the dominant and harmful impact the proposal would have on the
adjacent Listed Building, and the subsequent harm it would have on the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area. The refused scheme is at Appendix 2.

ASH/9768/7 — Renewal of planning permission ASH/9768/4 for the erection of a dwelling and
new access. Permitted in November 2007. The permitted scheme is at Appendix 3.

Planning Policies

Policy DC1 of the adopted Local Plan requires development to be of a high design quality in
terms of layout, scale, mass, height, detailing, materials to be used, and its relationship with
adjoining buildings, and to take into account local distinctiveness. Policy DC5 of the adopted
Local Plan requires safe and convenient access and parking.

Policy DC9 of the adopted Local Plan seeks to ensure development will not unacceptably harm
the amenities of neighbouring properties and the wider environment.

Policy HE1 of the adopted Local Plan seeks to ensure proposals would preserve or enhance the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area. Policy HE4 of the adopted Local Plan
resists proposals that would not respect the setting of a Listed Building.

Policy H11 of the adopted Local Plan allows for new housing sites of up to about 0.5 ha and not
more than 15 dwellings within the built up areas of the larger villages.

Page 113



4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.0

5.1

5.2

APPENDIX 1

Consultations

Ashbury Parish Council does not object but requests the following issues be taken into
consideration:

e Requests that the ground level be lowered by at least half a metre

e Requests the use appropriate building materials

e Must consider appropriate construction of the access

¢ The full comments of the Parish council are at Appendix 4.

County Engineer — “The proposal as submitted revises an existing extant permission,
therefore there are no objections subject to conditions.”

8 letters of objection have been received from 4 different households. Their comments can be
summarised as follows:

e There have been only small and cosmetic changes when compared to the permitted
scheme (at Appendix 3)
Concerns are raised with regard to the size and scale of the dwelling
The proposal will dominate the surrounding cottages
Concerns are raised with regard to the increased risk of flooding
Concerns are raised with regard to the impact of the proposal on the amenities of
neighbouring properties
The proposal would be visible within the surrounding landscape
Concerns are raised with regard to highway safety issues, in particular the access,
the increase in vehicular movements, the poor state of the lane and its narrow width
e The proposal would fill the existing gap between the listed buildings and the 20"
century housing
The proposal would be out of keeping within the Conservation Area
The revised application is twice the size of the permitted scheme (at Appendix 3)
The style and materials of the dwelling are not in character with the area

Officer Comments

The application has been submitted following a previous refusal on the site for a single
dwelling and detached garage which was refused due to the harmful impact of the proposal
on the adjacent Listed Buildings, and the impact on the Conservation Area. The refused
scheme is at Appendix 2. It should be noted that there is an extant planning permission on the
site for a single dwelling, which was renewed in 2007; therefore the principle of residential
development on this site has already been established. Whilst the proposal would fall slightly
outside the general line of buildings along Berrycroft, it is still considered to be within the
general built form of the village, especially as there is residential development to the north.
Whilst it is noted some public views would be lost towards the fields to the rear of the site, this
is not considered to be so significant to justify refusal, especially as a dwelling has already
been permitted on the site.

The proposed dwelling is larger compared to that already permitted on the site, and is not
dissimilar in size to the previously refused. However the proposal has now been ‘broken-up’
compared to the previous refused scheme, and part of the ridge-line has now been set down.
Furthermore the single storey element has now been moved to the north side of the dwelling.
The proposal now has the appearance of a smaller dwelling when compared to the refused
scheme, with a central structure, with smaller additions to the north and south. The change of
position of the single storey element now creates a greater visual separation between the
proposal and the Listed Buildings to the north. Whilst it is appreciated the land is higher on the
application site, due to the location of this single storey element, the distance between the
proposal and the Listed Buildings (which is more than 10 metres) and the other changes to
the design described above, it is not considered that the proposal would have a harmful

Page 114



5.3

5.4

5.5

6.0

6.1

impact on the setting of the Listed Buildings, or be harmful to the character or appearance of
the Conservation Area. In this regard it is noted that the Conservation Officer has no objection
to the proposal. Given the differences in the land levels between the application site and the
adjacent Listed Buildings it is considered reasonable that a slab level condition is imposed in
the event of planning permission being granted, to control the level at which the proposed
dwelling is built.

The proposed dwelling would face towards the rear garden of No.3 Berrycroft, however given
the distance of approximately 12 metres to the common boundary it is not considered that the
proposal would be harmful to the neighbour’s amenities. It is noted that the garage has been
reduced in size compared to the previously refused application. No objections were raised to
the previous garage, and given that it has now been reduced in size it is not considered to
have any harmful impact on the character of the area or neighbour’s amenities.

Whilst the comments received from the neighbouring residents regarding the access and
other highway issues are noted, the County Engineer has raised no objections to the proposal
noting that permission has already been granted for a single dwelling. Notwithstanding this the
County Engineer requests details of the visibility splays, parking and boundary treatments to
be approved by condition.

Comments from the Principal Drainage Engineer were not received at the time of writing this
report, however his comments on the previous application are noted which stated that the
applicant will need to demonstrate that surface water could be satisfactorily disposed of. It
needs to be noted, of course, that planning permission exists for a dwelling on the site. Given
the differences in land levels it is considered to be reasonable to impose a condition
requesting details of the proposed drainage system (both surface water and foul sewage).

Recommendation

It is recommended that planning permission be granted, subject to the following conditions.
1. TL1 Time limit

2. MC1 Submission of materials

3. RE7  Submission of boundary details

4, LS4  Landscaping scheme to be submitted APPEND'X 1
5. RE22 Floor/slab level details to be submitted
6. HY2  Submission of access details

7. HY24  Parking/turning area as shown on plan retained

Page 115



Agenda Item 13

ABG/20415 — Mr D Papa
Erection of a first floor and rear extensions to an existing detached bungalow.
174 Oxford Road, Abingdon, Oxfordshire, OX14 2AE.

1.0 The Proposal

1.1 This application seeks planning permission for first floor and rear extensions to an
existing detached 2 bedroom bungalow to provide additional living accommodation on
the ground floor and three additional bedrooms one with en-suite and a bathroom at
first floor. 174 Oxford Road is located on one of the main artery roads leading into
Abingdon in a predominantly residential area. A location plan, with proposed floor
plans and elevations are at Appendix 1.

1.2  Amended drawings have been submitted which show the hipping of the roof of the
proposed first floor side extension facing 172 Oxford Road. This change has been
made in order to reduce the dominant impact on this neighbour.

1.3  This application comes before Committee because the Town Council has objected.

2.0 Planning History

2.1 There is no planning history on this property

3.0 Planning Policies

3.1 Policies H24, DC1, DC5 and DC9 of the adopted Vale of White Horse Local seek to
ensure that all new development is of high standard of design, does not cause harm to
the amenity of neighbours or to the character and appearance of its surroundings, and
is acceptable in terms of highway safety.

4.0 Consultations

4.1  Abingdon Town Council objects: “The Town Council felt that the application did not
give regard to the Vale of White Horse District Council’s guidelines on extensions
being subordinate to the existing house, therefore over development of the site. The
roof line does not comply to guidelines as it remains the same height”

4.2  County Engineer - No objections subject to conditions

4.3 No letters have been received from neighbours.

5.0 Officer Comments

5.1  The main issues to consider in determining this application are: 1) whether the
proposal would have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the
area; and 2) the impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties in terms of
overshadowing.

5.2 The proposal is to demolish the existing single storey lean to conservatory at the rear
of the bungalow and replace it with a ground floor and first floor 5.34 metre long rear
extension and for a first floor side extension to provide additional accommodation in
the roof space. The proposed eaves and ridge heights will not be any higher than the
existing bungalow.

194/07

Page 116



5.3

5.4

5.5

6.0

6.1

Officers consider that the design of the proposal meets the Council’s House Extension
Design Guide, in that the whole bungalow will be modified /remodelled in a way that it
is considered sympathetic to the street scene.

In terms of residential amenity, the nearest property is No. 172 Oxford Road, which is
located 1.5 metres away to the south. This is a detached bungalow. The main
windows of this property face front and rear gardens. There are no windows on the
flank elevation facing the proposal. Therefore due to the distance away and
orientation, Officers consider that there will be no harmful impact on this property in
terms of overlooking or overshadowing.

No. 176 Oxford Road is located approximately one metre away to the north. This is a
detached house with an attached single garage nearest to the proposal. The main
windows of this property face front and rear gardens. There are no windows on the
flank elevation facing the proposal. Therefore due to the distance away and orientation
Officers consider that there will be no harmful impact on this property in terms of
overlooking or overshadowing.

Recommendation

Permission subject to the following conditions:

1. TL1 - Time Limit.

2. RET1 - Matching Materials

3. MC9 — Proposed first floor shower room roof light and bathroom roof light in the
north elevation shall be glazed with obscure glass only and no additional
windows to be inserted at first floor level and above in the north elevation of the
proposed development hereby approved without prior grant of planning
permission.

4. RE14 — Existing garage to be retained for such use

5. MC20 — Amended Drawings

194/07

Page 117



. |
[\ ~ OS Sitemap™

WEOEOGY
woopOG¥
weogogY

199054m - t - 199054m

199000m

198000m

, 1:20=12m .
1:50 =3m >
1:100 = 6m : !
1:200 = 12m 198900m
1:500 = 30m
1:1250 = 75m
1:2500 = 150m
198854m

& &

& &

g g

Produced 16.01.2008 from the Ordnance Survey National
Geographic Database and incorporating surveyed revision
available at this date. © Crown Copyright 2008.

‘Reproduction in whole or part is prohibited without the

prior permission of Ordnance Survey. Metres

) : v} 20 40
Ordnance Survey and the OS Symbol are registered — ot
trademarks and.OS Sitemap is a trademark of
Ordnance Survey, the national mapping agency Scale 1:1250

_ of Great Britain. :

. Supplied by: Blackwells
The representation of a road, frack or path is no - Serial number: 00418700

evidence of a right of way. Centre coordinates: 450403 198954
The representation of features as lines is no evidence Further information can be found on the
of a property boundary. 0S Sitemap Information leaflet or the AP PEN DIX 1

Ordnance Survey web site:

www.ordnancesupag.é 1 18



Ordnance
Survey”

o

OS Sitemap™

T@s drawing is protected by the Copyright, & &
Dgsigns and Patents Act 1968 {Secticn 47). You g &
may only downlcad andfor print a copy for 3 3
198995 TETITSTHTIT 0N TSN CLITaNT - 198995m
afplication with pPrews sand to check
wieiber a dgvelopment is Duing carried oute i
hds besn dompleted in accoydance with the !
afjproved grawings. 1f you reqyire a copy of the
drpWings-or other material for yothmr purpose
ydu will need to cbtain the prigr permission of the /
cdpyright owner.
/
!
1:20 = 1.2m
L / / 1:50 = 3m
Foo 1:100 = 6m
P 1:200 = 12m
] / p 1:500 = 30m q
/ N I 1:1250 =75m

1:2500 = 150m

198915m [ To- ~— o I I
P H
o [}
S =)
A 5 5
3 § 3
08/oon'=a/t=u\, Req /20415
Produced 16.01.2008 from the Ordnance Survey National |
Geographic Database and incorporating surveyed revision VA[hg'I‘OI{IC\)VTHCrg%ﬁg[‘},SB
available at this date. © Crown Copyright 2008.
Reproduction in whole or part is prohibited without the RECD
prior permission of Ordnance Survey. 0 Mi‘ges 20 2 3 JAN 2008
Ordnance Survey and the OS Symbol are registered k % + - | CORPORATE POSTAL
trademarks and OS Sitemap is a trademark of P QRRVICRES .
Ordnance Survey, the national mapping agency ' Scale 1:500
of Great Britain. )
Supplied by: Blackwells
The representation of a road, track or path is no Serial number: 00418800
evidence of a right of way. Centre coordinates: 450397 198955

The representation of features as lines is no evidence
of a property boundary.

Further information can be found on the
OS Sitemap Information leaflet or the
Ordnance Survey web site:

www.oranr,ﬁsg\/éy.ar.ur 9



vV witavs @@ wmTwaaa Wo'c  now 20_0 no'z  wol >

NOXO ‘NOGONIGY ‘AvOd Td04X0 ‘vL 1

OL GNOUVAILIV # “NOISHIANOD 1401 ‘NOISNILXE v
O Jo uoespussd sopd oy -
SIWOIILO 45 66L2LL €6610 ON "2 esoding soyjo 4 2
QI 100  =3eQ dN3 62X0 UoXQ “AauIm 8o Adoo e, >
0011 3e0g Y= yInog “peoy [adeun sbesson suoy : M:sm.__ﬁ : m
NOLLOOM / Vd¥d  3ua1) ‘SALVIDOSSY % INVOS MV © 004D 01
WBling v e N
- 10y Ados o ; Ll
NOA (L uonoeg) gy Lo sufisn, a
WhuAdon ey Aq peaoid sy mﬁzmwo cm.mm o,
NOILYAZNE LNOH4 dASO40¥d NOILYAZNE 3AIS d3460d408d 7 A
wipst = 00521 . |
wgz = 08Z11 j
woe = 00861 W % %
wgl = 0021 ]
wg = 0014 ‘
we = 084
wz't =0zt
=== TIT T LLT ﬁ

Page 120

I LI TITTTIITTTI LT LTI LITEITTITITTTITIT
g
T
1o R Laua

S nus g ]

YL qogy
ol INOOD
LISHOH yipi %%wa
ToA NOILYATIZ WV AISOONd  Buners yozew o3 sioop NOILYATIE 3015 A36040Nd

¥ SMOPUM DAL PIUM

‘Buigsixa yojeur 03 Mojeq
syouq Buioey 3 2ui| o A0qe 23uMm
pajuied sjjem posspusi Juows)

3 ‘Burgsixa yogew
o3 sadidumop 3
suapnk ‘seosey

g

TTTITTT1
TITT T T T T I T T TT T T I 1T

‘Bunsig yojew o3 sepg
93910000 A2ub uigy ]

T I T T T AT LI T II T IITTTT 117
IXTITTTITTITTTT

T/ 6110/ 89
8119/ 55y
N

q



103

noA (iru
Wilpidony «

Q\\Q\M\MM\Q

RS

usano

NOXO ‘NOAONIGY ‘av0d QI04X0 VL1

OL SNOLYHILY # "NOISHIANOD L4OT *NOISNILE Hvay

UAVOI/LO 49y

g1 10'e0  @1eQ

0§31 i3jeog

NOLLOOM / VdVd 24D

APPENDIX 1

Adoo

66L2LL €6610 "ON "I7L,
dN3 62%0 woxQ “Aouzim

‘Wbz ynog ‘peoy [adeyn ‘obejo) ouoy
‘SIIVIDOGSY % INVOS TV 9

wost = 00sg:1
wgL = 0gei:L
Woe = 00671
wzgl = 002:1
w9 =goL:1
wg =051
wz'L =021

00&gez | VIS

001 qey

sbruge

Bz

SI01) 9N

Wo's Wo'y wo'e Wo'z

Wo'|

uBI| j004 sdeasy

:

a¥yoddno
ONINIY

WNOCRa3ad

b1 jooy

|
]

WOO3aad

L E
ONIGNY?
E;m_NMQEm
Calodl
i F T e SRS
' o
ﬂ m.cnmﬂﬁ O0¥ JIMOHS
] L g e
b
I
-~ P
I
i
11
Il
:
|



( NV1d ¥OOT ANNOED GASOJ0Ed )

NOXO ‘NOG9NIgGV ‘avOd a304X0 “v4 L

OL GNOILVILIY # ‘NOIGIIANOD 1407 "NOIGNLLXT dVId

SHO1ILO

Q1 1080

(o)}

NOLIOOM / VdVd

HIY
19380
:21e0g
U

66L2LL €6610 ON 121
dN2 62X0 uoxO “‘Aumm
‘uBiz] yInog ‘pecy jpdeyr ‘abeton auoy

‘GALVIOOSSY $ INVOS MY ©

n.IuD.N\ hall J:n; G:OO\ 0

APPENDIX 1

WNO'S

WO'v

WO'€

nWo'e

i
wWo't

GARAGE

wog = 00s2: |
wel =05z}
woe = 00s:1
wzl = p0z:L
wg = 00):)
Wwe =05}
wz'p =02} >

JOUMO
ey} Jo uoissiuwiad joud ey} uiBIqe 1 Ped
esodind Joyio Aue 10) feusiaw 18Yio 1o sBuimerp
el jo Adco e annbas nod 3 sBuiverp pascidde
Ul Uylm souepicson U pawgdwc useg sey
10 1o pepied Bupsq st ustudoisasp B Jauioum
%OBYD 0} pue ‘esUeyds sNoMeId UM Lo
Wwauno e assdwod o) ‘sesodind uopBynsuod
oy Adoo e jupd Jospur peoumop Ao Aew
NOA “(7y uouses) 8861 10V Slueed pue sulliseq
‘WBuAdos sy Ag peysioid st Bumelp s

Wee'q

nWooyaaa

WoQ3a2a

TIvH

AVO4N

—

\

8

WOOY YIMOHS

A,
@]

ONILLIS

WELO

Levivadd

NZHOL

1

“% HL_
L A

AFES

Kepunog

WaZesT



AV DINUILLV/AS i JINILDINA

NOXO ‘NOGONIGY ‘avOd G304IXO ‘bL I

OL SNOILYIALTY ¥ ‘NOISAIANOD 1407 "NOISNT LA Wy

YIvOLILO HoY
og'el'Lo  =¥ed

OO~ 1] uu_sm
DLLOOM /¥dVd 21D

66L2LL £6610 ‘ON "I°L

4N 62X0 uoxQ “Aounm

WBIZ7 tanog ‘pecy [9deys “sbejion 2ioy
‘SALVIDOSSY $ INVOS 'Y 9

SIboT | Y3y .\.ﬁ\vso&wo

APPENDIX 1

eumo buddon

| GIBIGO C} Pastl jm NoA

21EL 5o 10 sbumelp

. i - Ji "sbuimeip pasnidde
S} UM 80UBRICOIR U pelejdwied usag gey
J0 100 peies Gusq sy justudooasp © Isyauym
3}08Ud 03 pue ‘selusyos snoald uim uonedijdde
ueund v esedwod ¢ ‘gassdind uopeynsuod
104 Adoo e jupd lopue poolumop Ao Aew
NoA “(4y UORISS) 8861 10V Siusiey pue subisag
‘WBpAdon eyt Ag pepejoad st Bumesp sy

DAN 234Mm suvop
$ smopum Buigsixg —

NOILYAZTE LNO¥H ONILSIXT

NOILYAZTR 3dIS ONILSIXT

mofeq syouq Buoey §

i [0 PAOqe PPYM pajued 4
poIspUSl Juswso sEm buigeng

531} 92u0u00 Koub ued

Busroo joor Buisng

AJOLVARISNOD SMd NOUVATTE VIS ONILGIXE

AJOLVAIIGNOD SININ NOLVYAITE ¥V ONILGIXT

COTTTTETT

I

=] Ecﬁnomr
wgl =0k

4
wog = 005: +
wzl = 93

wg = H
we =
wz'L =08
ol

NOIVATIA AAIS ONILSIXZ

H
i

AT TRITTTTITTEY
)/

<
]




(NV1d J00T4 ANNOID ONIIGIXA )

NOXQ "NOG9aNIgY "avod qu04X0 ‘L1
OL GNOIVEZLTY # “NOISSIANOD 1407 ‘NOIGNZLXZ ¥V

66.L2LL €6610 ON "IPL

€0 11L0O 47y . )
02'21'L0 @%a NS G2ZXO UOXO “ABum
00l @G ubiz] uinog ‘pecy jodeu) ‘sbejjon sioy

MLIOOM / YdVd 13310 ‘SALVIDOGSY # ANVOS 'Y 9

J
§ - SAOIANAS
TVLSOd 3IVIOAH0D AIOLYANIENOT —
BOOL NV €7 aomy
TIONAQD LONMLSIA
SSUOH JLIHM 40 m_._<> _u Ny
NOOY ¥IMOHS
aaHs ) NIHOLM
LNV Wooda3a o) ONINIQ
m
l__lﬁ
\t TIVH
H_ 2OVaVD
noodaag SONILLIS

Aepunog

APPENDIX 1

Page 124



akasann|

{ SNOILVAZT 0350408 ) r s

T T
WO's WOy WOE WO WO

NOXO *NOASNIgY ‘avo¥ QiO4X0 Vil
OL GNOILYAILTY ¥ “NOIGIIANOD L4010 ‘NOIGNI LA ¥V

LIVOILO e 66.L2.L €6610 "ON 191
gi"10/90 % dn9 62x0 uoxQ Aeuam

0011 2106 bie] nog ‘pecy 1adeyy ‘oBesiod 210V
NOLLOOM [ VdYd U210 ‘GIIVIDOSEY # INWWOS Y ©

m_\vﬁ\gm J:»\ c:oo\mo

APPENDIX 1
)
1E18)
(=)
(L)
9D,
05
[LL]
(Gl
@
L'/’P

NOILVATH INO¥d 0260d03d

wogl = 00§21}
Eh»nnnawwm_—. T LT LTI LIT]
wgl =00¢: 1
we = goL:L
e RTNE we = 08°4
71508 HLVORM0D ek =0zt
UL NP § 1 00m T
noo Lonstd <
T

NOLLYAZNZ dVHY ad5040¥d “Bugsixe yo3EW 0F SI00P NOILVYATA 301G 350034

4 SmopuM DAL FAMM

‘BugsIxe yojew 03 MmojRq
oyouq buioey § 2ui| IIi> 2A0GE FuM
pojiied sjlem poIspuRl JUAWSD

RO U

woting R -Buigsixs yojeut

03 sedidumop 3
cuzpnb ‘cesE

-Buigeixe yojew 03 3413

JEHND B andun
i 2y2a0u00 L2ib ue] ——] i

3 Adeo o

598) G881 1oy ¢
W Aq psjogid ¢

N



( NV Id J0O0 12 1S314 3504034 )

NOXO ‘NOA9ONIGY 'avOd GAO-4X0 "L 1
OL SNOUYEALY # ‘NOISHIANOD LIOT "NOISNILG dVIY

SOHILO 9y
2110’0 93ed
0G| :2eog

NOLIOOM / VdVd 31D

S0z By MY .o;oo?o

]
1

B6LZLL €6610 ON "1PL

4N3 62%0 voxO “Aaumm

‘yBia] ynog ‘pecy [adeyn ‘obegon sioy
‘GALVIDOSSY $# INWVOS TV 9

€ - SHOIAMEHS
TV.LSOd 3LVHOLd( !
0L NI §T ;
— i
TIONNOD LOMYLS! x
ASUOH FLIHM 403 [
Q ,
= | WSt = 00gz:L
E wg/ =ggzy:y
HgE = 00g:y
mPl wzi =goz:1
A w9 =00}
a we =0g:¢
8 Z
Bwuw%ﬁ; Wig'L =0g:1
Soaua o
Weimno ¢
108 Adon p :
W0A (15 uop my CERIL 29 !
~£@.:\.QOO 2y x.anm.%mmwmm._c
TS 7] —\.C",,..Em.ﬁt V.?»...F
00se: ! ANOS
NY1d SO0
joou qey
sbraee
]
I - » D
3
D 2 A
)
opr
o o

Wo's Wo'v Wo'e Wo'Z wWo't 0
LT L]
| Oaa 4 )
oo | @] D)
¢l . :
T
— |
i == 7
I m ///» _
{ _r\\
! B} Joou adeosy )
b1 Jooy ]
WoOo¥a34
e o
NN I
LN -
AN
(O)
0gdno
- m T O
e ———————— D
ONIANY all
unee mQEﬂ
b = B i
| suesq 3903
° \o715 404 $o!
T woo3a3a ° Hooaas 7
- 00 JIMOHS
- INSNI
@ 4B 400 A. '. by j00y
. res ©) )
Nl
Il
[
[
It
i
[
o




1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

4.0

41

4.2

Agenda ltem 14

KEN/20447 — Mr J Eeekelaar

Variation of condition 3 of planning permission KEN/7664 to exclude number 5
Perkins from age restriction.

5 Perkins, Upper Road, Kennington, OX1 5LN

The Proposal

This application seeks to vary condition 3 of planning permission KEN/7664 which
granted planning permission for the erection of 7 old person bungalows in March
1984. The condition requires the occupation of the dwellings to be restricted to
persons over the age of 55 years unless otherwise agreed in writing by the District
Planning Authority.

The condition was imposed for the following reason: “because the scheme was
designed specifically for elderly persons”. The application originally sought to lower
the age limit to 30 and to impose a single occupancy restriction. This has since been
amended to vary the condition on the basis of excluding no. 5 from the age restriction.

A copy of the plan showing the location of the property and the applicant’s supporting
statement are attached at Appendix 1.

The application comes to Committee at the request of Councillor Jerry Patterson and
because Kennington Parish Council objects to the application.

Planning History

See above.

Planning Policies

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011

Policies DC1, DC5 and DC9 (quality of new development) are relevant and seek to
ensure that all new development is of a high standard of design / landscaping; does
not cause harm to the amenity of neighbours; the development is acceptable in terms
of highway safety.

Consultations

Kennington Parish Council has objected to the application and their comments are
attached at Appendix 2.

The County Engineer has no objections to the variation proposed stating:

“Typically lower levels of trip generation and parking demand are associated with care
and nursing homes for the elderly. However no such data is held for private housing
for those over 55. The spirit of the condition was to provide for the elderly who,
perhaps at that time, were likely to be less active in terms of car use and ownership.
However | doubt this would be applicable now and indeed would not necessarily
describe someone over the age of 55 as elderly. For example it is quite probable a
couple, meeting this criterion, would both be in full-time employment and would travel
to work by car. Therefore, whilst there may have been some merit to the condition at
the time of granting planning permission, it is now, in highway terms, considered of
little significance.

194/07

Page 127



4.3

4.4

4.5

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

With regard to the provision of off-street parking; there would be some potential for an
overspill of parking, however, this would be most likely to take place at the end of a
cul-de-sac and would not significantly impact upon highway safety. Please note; the
potential for the aforementioned overspill of parking would be no greater than currently
exists with the condition imposed.

Therefore the Local Highway Authority has no objection to this application.”
5 letters of objection have been received, which are summarised as follows:

¢ Neighbouring residents are very concerned that unrestricted occupation could give

rise to noise nuisance from younger occupants.

The proposal will set a precedent.

There is no need to remove this property from the restriction in order to sell it.

Altering the age limit to 30 is not acceptable to neighbouring residents.

Restricting the property to single occupancy would be impossible to enforce.

There are few properties in Kennington with an age restriction and there is a

demand for such property. 2 other bungalows at Perkins have been sold recently,

which proves there is a demand for these retirement bungalows.

e There is at present a problem with car parking in this development. Lowering /
removing the age restriction will most likely increase the number of residents
needing car parking spaces.

Officer Comments

The main issue in this case is whether the proposed variation to the condition to
effectively enable general needs housing at No.5 Perkins would have any appreciable
impact on the whole development or on the character of the surrounding area that
could be detrimental to neighbouring residents.

The original development in 1984 created 7x1 bed units which were designed for
elderly occupancy (i.e. easy access with a single ground floor). The condition was
imposed as a result of this tailored design, as evidenced by the reason given on the
decision notice (see section 1 above).

Since the planning permission was granted in 1984, Government advice on the
imposition of conditions has changed, whereby if one were considering the imposition
of such a condition today, the condition would need to comply with the six tests for the
validity of conditions as set out in Circular 11/95 — Use of Conditions in Planning
Permissions. Paragraph 92 of this Circular covers the issue of occupancy conditions
and states:

“Since planning controls are concerned with the use of land rather than the identity
of the user, the question of who is to occupy premises for which permission is to be
granted will normally be irrelevant. Conditions restricting occupancy to a particular
occupier or class of occupier should only be used when special planning grounds
can be demonstrated, and where the alternative would normally be refusal of
permission.”

As a general rule age restriction conditions are only imposed where normal planning
standards (parking, privacy etc) are reduced to a level that would render a general
housing scheme to be unacceptable or where a site lies within an area where general

194/07

Page 128



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

6.0

6.1

residential development would not normally be permitted. This is normally based on
the fact that such conditions are not readily enforceable and are often unnecessary.

The site clearly lies within the built up area of Kennington whereby new residential
development, in principle, would be allowed, and sufficient amenity space exists on
site for each dwelling whereby the overall layout of the existing development would be
acceptable for general housing needs.

Your Officers, therefore, have considered relevant case law in consideration of this
application as to whether there would be any other reason to withhold permission for
the proposed variation.

One legitimate concern that is apparent is that reducing / relaxing the age of
occupancy could give rise to additional car parking demand which may result in a
reduction of residential amenity and highway safety. However, the development was
constructed in the mid 1980s where parking standards were more generous than the
standards today. Under current maximum standards only 1 parking space would be
required for this 1 bedroom dwelling, and this currently exists on site. The County
Engineer has commented that the imposition of the condition in today’s climate has
little significance’. It is also worthy to note an appeal on a similar case where a
reduction in age was allowed on the grounds that ‘car parking requirements were
unlikely to be different’. Your Officers, therefore, consider withholding permission on
highway grounds would not be defensible on appeal.

The only other issue for consideration is whether harm would arise from occupancy of
No.5 by a younger person. In this respect your Officers consider that such occupation
would not be harmful, as evidenced from relevant appeal cases. In the first case, it
was argued that young couples were likely to lead a more active lifestyle than the
elderly. An Inspector accepted that young people were likely to have a higher per
capita car ownership and that the extra vehicle movements would lead to more noise
and disturbance. The inspector thought it wrong, however, to assume that the young
would behave unduly noisily, and if they did the remedy was outside planning
legislation. It was also stated that some peoples hearing impairs with age and so many
elderly need to listen to the radio etc at a higher volume than others. In the second
case an Inspector concluded that persons under the age restriction imposed would not
be likely to make greater use of the grassed areas within the development such as to
cause a nuisance. Nor was their lifestyle likely to disturb more elderly neighbours.

In the light of all of the above, your Officers do not consider that planning permission
could reasonably be withheld.

Recommendation

That planning permission to vary condition 3 of KEN/7664 to exclude No.5 Perkins be
granted.

194/07

Page 129



Survey”

Ordnance &

202973m

APPENDIX 1

202%00m

202973m

202800m

Ef Sub Sta

Hundar
Court

202773m

weyg LGy
W00 | G¥

wgo0ZGY

Produced 20.02.2008 from the Ordnance Survey National
Geographic Database and incorporating surveyed revision
available at this date. ® Crown Copyright 2008.

Reproduction in whole or part is prohibited without the
prior permission of Ordnance Survey.

Ordnance Survey and the OS Symbol are registered
trademarks and OS Sitemap is a trademark of
Ordnance Survey, the national mapping agency

of Great Britain.

The representation of a road, track or path is no
evidence of a right of way.

The representation of features as lines is no evidence
of a property boundary.

¥ o> HPALEY
This drawing is protected DY tn? \Jl(‘)pym\,.,ua
Designs and patents Act 1980 (Sgcug\n A7), ?or
may only download andicr print a Coggrrent
‘ tati cao, o compare a
consuitation purpeses, .
application with pravicus schemes, angj o ch;a%li
\r‘rhe-ther a development is baing camed‘c‘:u o
k;as peemegsympleted in acco:'.dance W‘mf:the“ . o
Ogpproved @fawings. li4gou require @ copy of;

: ol for any other purpose
you wiaardtoggin the pricr permission of the -~ -
copyright owner. ' '

Supplied by: Blackwells K/:N 0 ‘1"‘1‘7
Serial number: 00459600
Centre coordinates: 451948 202873

Further information can be found on the (95/00;175'@/ l/

0S8 Sitemap Information leaflet or the
Ordnance Survey web site:

www.ordnanc ﬁg:g:k‘l 30

¥

202900m

4:1250 =75m
1:2500 = 150m



Ridgeway Cottage, The Ridgeway,
Boars Hill, Oxford OX1 SEX

Tel. 01865-735485 (h)
01865-276429 (w)

2 February 2008
Stuart Walker,
Principal Planning Officer,
VWHDC,
Abbey House, APPENDIX 1
Abingdon OX14 3JE

Dear Mr Walker,
Bungalow 5, Perkins, 71 Upper Road, Kennington

I wrote to you on 3 December 2007 regarding this property, asking if you would
consider giving permission to depart from the age restriction of 55 in the planning
consent in the case of a prospective buyer with a disability. You were kind enough to
respond quickly (6" December) agreeing to do this. Unfortunately, the transaction fell
through because of the failure of the prospective buyer to sell his property.

I would like to make another request, arising from the same considerations as the one
of 3 December, namely, the apparent lack of demand for a property with this
restriction. The result is that a property which the agent assures me would be
attractive to someone who is not qualified stands empty. You point out that the
reasons for the original imposition of the restriction were that the site is deficient in
car parking (only one bay is available per property) and to ensure that such
accommodation would be available in Kennington.

The second reason seems now to have lost all weight, since there is clearly no demand
for such accommodation in Kennington which requires special protection. The first
concern could be met if the planning authority was prepared to allow occupancy by a
person under 55, but only on the basis that the occupancy was single occupancy.
There is only one bedroom, and it is very unlikely that a single person would have
more than one car.

Might the authority therefore agree, as you did in the abortive case last year, that it
will give permission for occupancy in the case of someone under 55, but only if that
person occupied the property as a single occupant? I think there are likely to be many
single people working in and around Oxford who would be attracted by the property.
It might be reasonable to impose a lower age limit of, say, 30.

I have discussed this with the Chairman of the Perkins Residents Association, who is
supportive, and the residents of the next-door property (No. 6), who would be very
happy to have No 5 occupied on this basis. They share my view that the introduction
of a younger person into the ageing residents group would be an actual benefit.

I would be very grateful for your reaction to this.

Yours sincerely,
John Eekelaar

Page 131



Kennington Parish Council
Oxfordshire

KEN/20447 5 Perkins Upper Road Kennington
Vary condition number 3 of planning permission KEN/7664 to exclude number 5
Perkins Upper Road Kennington.

The Parish Council object strongly to the application for the following reasons:

e Perkins was developed specifically as old persons bungalows. The Parish
Council sees this as a valuable resource in an increasingly ageing population.

e Removal of this condition from one of the bungalows would set a precedent
and be difficult to resist for the other properties. This would change the nature
of the development to the detriment of those living there at present.

The members of the Parish Council were convinced that with correct marketing and a
realistic price this property could be sold as a retirement home.

W Tl

Pam Johnston
Clerk to the Council

APPENDIX 2

Clerk to the Council —~ Mrs Pam Johnston
102 Kennington Road, Kennington, Oxford, OX! SPE
Telephone— 01865 421126 Fax-01865 730209
E-mail — Kennjggton. pc@nt world.com

age 1



	Agenda
	Map and Vision
	8 Forthcoming Public Inquiries and Hearings
	9 Local Development Framework: Open Space, Sport and Recreation Supplementary Planning Document, Future Provision
	Appendix 1
	Appenidix 2
	Appendix 2A

	10 GOO/17829/3 Proposed erection of a garden shed. The Parsonage House, Goosey, Faringdon Oxon, SN7 8PA.
	Appendices GOO

	11 HIN/19721/4 Erection of a terrace of 3 x 3 bedroom dwellings. Land adjoining 1 High Street, Hinton Waldrist, SN7 8RN
	Appendices HIN

	12 ASH/19908/3  Erection of a single dwelling, single garage and re-use existing access (resubmission), Land adjoining Tilling, Berrycroft, Ashbury SN6 8LX
	Appendices ASH

	13 ABG/20415  Erection of a first floor and rear extensions to an existing detached bungalow, 174 Oxford Road, Abingdon, Oxfordshire, OX14 2AE
	Appendices ABG

	14 KEN/204475 Variation of condition 3 of planning permission KEN/7664 to exclude number 5 Perkins from age restriction. Perkins, Upper Road, Kennington, OX1 5LN
	Appendices KEN


